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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
Various statements contained in or incorporated by reference into this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are forward-looking statements within the
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the "Exchange Act"). These forward-looking statements include statements, projections and estimates concerning our operations, performance,
business strategy, oil and natural gas reserves, drilling program capital expenditures, liquidity and capital resources, the timing and success of specific
projects, outcomes and effects of litigation, claims and disputes, derivative activities and potential financing. Forward-looking statements are generally
accompanied by words such as "estimate," "project," "predict," "believe," "expect," "anticipate," "potential," "could," "may," "foresee," "plan," "goal,"
"should," "intend," "pursue," "target," "continue," "suggest" or other words that convey the uncertainty of future events or outcomes. Forward-looking
statements are not guarantees of performance. These statements are based on certain assumptions and analyses made by us in light of our experience and our
perception of historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments as well as other factors we believe are appropriate under the
circumstances. Among the factors that significantly impact our business and could impact our business in the future are:
•

the ongoing instability and uncertainty in the U.S. and international financial and consumer markets that is adversely affecting the liquidity
available to us and our customers and is adversely affecting the demand for commodities, including crude oil and natural gas;

•

volatility of oil and natural gas prices;

•

the possible introduction of regulations that prohibit or restrict our ability to apply hydraulic fracturing to our oil and natural gas wells;

•

discovery, estimation, development and replacement of oil and natural gas reserves, including our expectations that estimates of our proved
reserves will increase;

•

competition in the oil and gas industry;

•

availability and costs of drilling and production equipment, labor, and oil and gas processing and other services;

•

changes in domestic and global demand for oil and natural gas;

•

the availability of sufficient pipeline and transportation facilities;

•

uncertainties about the estimates of our oil and natural gas reserves;

•

changes in the regulatory environment and changes in international, legal, political, administrative or economic conditions;

•

successful results from our identified drilling locations;

•

our ability to execute our strategies;

•

our ability to recruit and retain the qualified personnel necessary to operate our business;

•

our ability to comply with federal, state and local regulatory requirements;

•

evolving industry standards and adverse changes in global economic, political and other conditions;

•

restrictions contained in our debt agreements, including our senior secured credit facility and the indentures governing our senior unsecured
notes, as well as debt that could be incurred in the future; and

•

our ability to generate sufficient cash to service our indebtedness and to generate future profits.
iii

Table of Contents
These forward-looking statements involve a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those suggested by
the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements should, therefore, be considered in light of various factors, including those set forth under
"Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q,
under "Item 1A. Risk Factors" and "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in our Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 and under "Part II, Item 1A. Risk Factors" in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2012. In light of such risks and uncertainties, we caution you not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. These
forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Quarterly Report, or if earlier, as of the date they were made. We do not intend to, and disclaim
any obligation to, update or revise any forward-looking statements unless required by securities law.
iv
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PART I
Item 1.

Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc.
Consolidated balance sheets
(in thousands, except share data)
(Unaudited)
June 30, December 31,
2012
2011
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Derivative financial instruments
Deferred income taxes
Other current assets

$ 146,485 $
71,832
20,513
—
5,816

28,002
74,135
13,281
5,202
2,318

Total current assets

244,646

122,938

2,551,524
127,971
63,667
21,840

2,083,015
117,195
58,136
16,948

2,765,002
1,008,597

2,275,294
896,785

1,756,405

1,378,509

64,903
12,888
31,666
5,430

90,376
6,510
23,457
5,862

Property and equipment:
Oil and natural gas properties, full cost method:
Proved properties
Unproved properties not being amortized
Pipeline and gas gathering assets
Other fixed assets
Less accumulated depreciation, depletion, amortization and impairment
Net property and equipment
Deferred income taxes
Derivative financial instruments
Deferred loan costs, net
Other assets, net

$2,115,938 $ 1,627,652

Total assets
Liabilities and stockholders' equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Undistributed revenue and royalties
Accrued capital expenditures
Accrued compensation and benefits
Derivative financial instruments
Accrued interest payable
Other current liabilities

$

49,311 $
31,565
92,646
8,210
603
26,193
15,498

46,007
26,844
91,022
11,270
4,187
20,112
14,919

224,026

214,361

Long-term debt
Derivative financial instruments
Asset retirement obligations
Other noncurrent liabilities

1,051,863
72
15,483
2,436

636,961
2,415
12,568
1,334

Total liabilities

1,293,880

867,639

Total current liabilities

Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized and zero issued at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 450,000,000 shares authorized, and 128,296,239 and 127,617,391 issued, net of treasury,
at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Treasury stock, at cost, 7,609 common shares at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011
Total stockholders' equity

—

—

1,283
956,203
(135,424)
(4)

1,276
951,375
(192,634)
(4)

822,058

760,013

$2,115,938 $ 1,627,652

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
1
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Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc.
Consolidated statements of operations
(in thousands, except per share data)
(Unaudited)
Three months ended
June 30,
2012
2011

Six months ended
June 30,
2012
2011

Revenues:
$139,609 $130,763 $288,560 $236,532
Oil and natural gas sales
1,015
964
2,412
2,306
Natural gas transportation and treating
140,624 131,727 290,972 238,838
Total revenues
Costs and expenses:
15,660 10,194 30,644 18,112
Lease operating expenses
7,318
7,897 16,237 14,999
Production and ad valorem taxes
391
615
691
1,167
Natural gas transportation and treating
333
397
1,771
693
Drilling and production
General and administrative (including non-cash stock-based compensation of
$2,588 and $557 for the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, and $4,835 and $876 for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and
14,410 10,522 31,941 19,770
2011, respectively)
292
155
556
304
Accretion of asset retirement obligations
60,697 43,439 112,220 75,917
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
—
37
—
243
Impairment expense
99,101 73,256 194,060 131,205
Total costs and expenses
41,523 58,471 96,912 107,633
Operating income
Non-operating income (expense):
Realized and unrealized gain (loss):
28,543 18,449 29,137
(9,585)
Commodity derivative financial instruments, net
—
(976)
(323) (1,094)
Interest rate derivatives, net
(21,674) (11,736) (36,358) (22,252)
Interest expense
15
22
31
58
Interest and other income
—
—
—
(3,246)
Write-off of deferred loan costs
(8)
(18)
(8)
(35)
Loss on disposal of assets
6,876
5,741
(7,521) (36,154)
Non-operating income (expense), net
48,399 64,212 89,391 71,479
Income before income taxes
Income tax expense:
(17,424) (23,140) (32,181) (25,737)
Deferred
(17,424) (23,140) (32,181) (25,737)
Total income tax expense
$ 30,975 $ 41,072 $ 57,210 $ 45,742
Net income
Net income per common share:
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

$
$

0.24
0.24

126,921
128,222

$
$

0.45
0.45
126,862
128,101

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc.
Consolidated statement of stockholders' equity
(in thousands)
(Unaudited)

Treasury Stock
(at cost)
Additional
paid-in
Accumulated
Amount capital Shares Amount
deficit

Common Stock
Shares

Balance,
December 31,
127,617 $1,276 $951,375
2011
Restricted stock
777
8
(8)
awards
Restricted stock
(98)
(1)
1
forfeitures
Stock-based
—
—
4,835
compensation
—
—
—
Net income
Balance, June 30,
128,296 $1,283 $956,203
2012

8

Total

$ (4) $ (192,634)$760,013

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—
—

—
—

—
57,210

4,835
57,210

8

$ (4) $ (135,424)$822,058

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this unaudited consolidated financial statement.
3
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Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc.
Consolidated statements of cash flows
(in thousands)
(Unaudited)
Six months ended
June 30,
2012
2011

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Deferred income tax expense
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Impairment expense
Non-cash stock-based compensation
Accretion of asset retirement obligations
Unrealized (gain) loss on derivative financial instruments, net
Premiums paid for derivative financial instruments
Amortization of premiums paid for derivative financial instruments
Amortization of deferred loan costs
Write-off of deferred loan costs
Amortization of October 2011 Notes premium
Amortization of other assets
Loss on disposal of assets
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in other current assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in undistributed revenues and royalties
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensation and benefits
Increase (decrease) in other accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in other noncurrent liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures:
Oil and natural gas properties
Pipeline and gas gathering assets
Other fixed assets
Proceeds from other fixed asset disposals
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings on revolving credit facilities
Payments on revolving credit facilities
Payments on term loan
Issuance of 2019 Notes
Issuance of 2022 Notes
Payments for loan costs
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period:
Interest, net of $505 and zero, respectively, of capitalized interest for the six months ended
June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively

$ 57,210 $ 45,742
32,181
25,737
112,220
75,917
—
243
4,835
876
556
304
(16,929)
7,192
(2,927)
(512)
319
216
2,268
1,909
—
3,246
(99)
—
10
9
8
35
2,303 (12,142)
(3,075)
(768)
3,304
(6,513)
4,721
8,019
(3,060)
(3,970)
4,828
16,572
1,117
(54)
199,790 162,058

(473,846) (348,523)
(7,031)
(6,344)
(4,988)
(4,602)
34
20
(485,831) (359,449)
195,000 180,100
(280,000) (231,300)
— (100,000)
— 350,000
500,000
—
(10,476) (10,592)
404,524 188,208
118,483
(9,183)
28,002
31,235
$ 146,485 $ 22,052

$ 27,956 $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
4
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Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc.
Condensed notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Unaudited)
A—Organization
Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc. ("Laredo Holdings") together with its subsidiaries, is an independent energy company focused on the exploration,
development and acquisition of oil and natural gas properties in the Permian and Mid-Continent regions of the United States. Laredo Holdings was
incorporated pursuant to the laws of the State of Delaware on August 12, 2011 for the purposes of a Corporate Reorganization (as defined below) and the
initial public offering of its common stock (the "IPO") on December 20, 2011. As a holding company, Laredo Holdings' management operations are
conducted through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Laredo Petroleum, Inc. ("Laredo"), a Delaware corporation, and Laredo's subsidiaries, Laredo Petroleum
Texas, LLC ("Laredo Texas"), a Texas limited liability company, Laredo Gas Services, LLC ("Laredo Gas"), a Delaware limited liability company, and
Laredo Petroleum—Dallas, Inc. ("Laredo Dallas"), a Delaware corporation.
On July 1, 2011, Laredo Petroleum, LLC ("Laredo LLC"), a Delaware limited liability company, and Laredo completed the acquisition of Broad Oak
Energy, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Broad Oak"), for a combination of equity and cash. Prior to the acquisition, Broad Oak was owned by its management
and Warburg Pincus Private Equity, L.P. ("Warburg Pincus IX"). On July 19, 2011, Broad Oak's name was changed to Laredo Petroleum—Dallas, Inc.
On December 19, 2011, immediately prior to the IPO, Laredo LLC merged with and into Laredo Holdings, with Laredo Holdings being the surviving
entity. Warburg Pincus IX and other affiliates of Warburg Pincus LLC were majority owners of Laredo LLC and are of Laredo Holdings. The preferred units
and certain series of restricted units of Laredo LLC were exchanged into shares of common stock of Laredo Holdings based on the pre-offering equity value
of such units (the "Corporate Reorganization"). The common stock has one vote per share and a par value of $0.01 per share.
In these notes, the "Company," when used in the present tense, prospectively or for historical periods since December 19, 2011, refers to Laredo
Holdings, Laredo and its subsidiaries collectively, and for historical periods prior to December 19, 2011 refers to Laredo LLC, Laredo and its subsidiaries
collectively, unless the context indicates otherwise.
B—Basis of presentation and significant accounting policies
1.

Basis of presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements were derived from the historical accounting records of the Company and reflect the
historical financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the periods described herein. The Broad Oak acquisition discussed in Note A was
accounted for in a manner similar to a pooling of interests. The historical financial statements present the assets and liabilities of Laredo Holdings and its
subsidiaries and Broad Oak at historical carrying values and their operations as if they were consolidated for all periods presented. All material intercompany
transactions and account balances have been eliminated in the consolidation of accounts. The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP"). The Company operates oil and natural
gas properties as one business segment, which explores for, develops and produces oil and natural gas.
5
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Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc.
Condensed notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
(Unaudited)
B—Basis of presentation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have not been audited by the Company's independent registered public accounting firm, except that
the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2011 is derived from audited consolidated financial statements. In the opinion of management, the
accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements reflect all necessary adjustments to present fairly the Company's financial position at June 30,
2012, the results of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 and cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011.
All such adjustments are of a normal recurring nature.
Certain disclosures have been condensed or omitted from these unaudited consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, these unaudited consolidated
financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in Laredo Holdings' Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 (the "2011 Annual Report").
2.

Use of estimates in the preparation of interim unaudited consolidated financial statements

The preparation of the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management of the Company to
make estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Although management believes these estimates are reasonable, actual results could differ from these estimates. The interim results reflected in the
unaudited consolidated financial statements are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for other interim periods or for the full year.
Significant estimates include, but are not limited to, estimates of the Company's reserves of oil and natural gas, future cash flows from oil and natural gas
properties, depreciation, depletion and amortization, asset retirement obligations, stock-based compensation, deferred income taxes and fair values of
commodity, interest rate derivatives and commodity deferred premiums. As fair value is a market-based measurement, it is determined based on the
assumptions that market participants would use. These estimates and assumptions are based on management's best judgment. Management evaluates its
estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience and other factors, including the current economic environment. Such estimates and
assumptions are adjusted when facts and circumstances dictate. Illiquid credit markets and volatile equity and energy markets have combined to increase the
uncertainty inherent in such estimates and assumptions. Management believes its estimates and assumptions to be reasonable under the circumstances. As
future events and their effects cannot be determined with precision, actual values and results could differ from these estimates. Any changes in estimates
resulting from future changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the financial statements in future periods.
3.

Accounts receivable

The Company sells oil and natural gas to various customers and participates with other parties in the drilling, completion and operation of oil and natural
gas wells. Joint interest and oil and natural gas sales receivables related to these operations are generally unsecured. Accounts receivable for joint interest
billings are recorded as amounts billed to customers less an allowance for doubtful accounts.
6
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Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc.
Condensed notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
(Unaudited)
B—Basis of presentation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
Amounts are considered past due after 30 days. The Company determines joint interest operations accounts receivable allowances based on management's
assessment of the creditworthiness of the joint interest owners and as the operator in the majority of its wells the ability to realize the receivables through
netting of anticipated future production revenues. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses inherent in its accounts
receivable portfolio. In establishing the required allowance, management considers historical losses, current receivables aging, and existing industry and
economic data. The Company reviews its allowance for doubtful accounts quarterly. Past due balances over 90 days and over a specified amount are reviewed
individually for collectability. Account balances are charged off against the allowance after all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for
recovery is remote.
Accounts receivable consist of the following components as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011:

(in thousands)

Oil and natural gas sales
Joint operations(1)
Other
Total, net

June 30, 2012

$

$

38,945
31,104
1,783
71,832

December 31, 2011

$

$

49,434
24,190
511
74,135

(1)

4.

Accounts receivable for joint operations are presented net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of approximately $0.1 million
at each of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.
Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to reduce exposure to fluctuations in the prices of oil and natural gas. By removing a significant
portion of the price volatility associated with future production, the Company expects to mitigate, but not eliminate, the potential effects of variability in cash
flows from operations due to fluctuations in commodity prices. These transactions are primarily in the form of collars, swaps, puts and basis swaps. In
addition, the Company enters into derivative contracts in the form of interest rate derivatives to minimize the effects of fluctuations in interest rates.
Derivative instruments are recorded at fair value and are included on the unaudited consolidated balance sheets as assets or liabilities. The Company
netted the fair value of derivative instruments by counterparty in the accompanying unaudited consolidated balance sheets where the right of offset exists. The
Company determines the fair value of its derivative financial instruments utilizing pricing models for significantly similar instruments. Inputs to the pricing
models include publicly available prices and forward price curves generated from a compilation of data gathered from third parties.
The Company's derivatives were not designated as hedges for accounting purposes for any of the periods presented. Accordingly, the changes in fair
value are recognized in the unaudited consolidated statements of operations in the period of change. Realized and unrealized gains and losses on derivatives
are included in cash flows from operating activities (see Note F).
7
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Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc.
Condensed notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
(Unaudited)
B—Basis of presentation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
5.

Other current liabilities
Other current liabilities consist of the following components as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011:

(in thousands)

June 30, 2012

$

Lease operating expense payable
Prepaid drilling liability
Production taxes payable
Deferred income taxes payable
Current portion of asset retirement obligations
Other accrued liabilities
Total other current liabilities
6.

$

December 31, 2011

6,663
1,995
1,591
1,506
393
3,350
15,498

$

$

5,297
2,378
1,493
—
506
5,245
14,919

Property and equipment
The following table sets forth the Company's property and equipment as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011:

(in thousands)

June 30, 2012

$

Proved oil and natural gas properties
Less accumulated depletion and impairment
Proved oil and natural gas properties, net

2,551,524
993,312
1,558,212

December 31, 2011

$

2,083,015
884,533
1,198,482

Unproved properties not being amortized

127,971

117,195

Pipeline and gas gathering assets
Less accumulated depreciation
Pipeline and gas gathering assets, net

63,667
7,900
55,767

58,136
6,394
51,742

21,840
7,385
14,455
1,756,405

16,948
5,858
11,090
1,378,509

Other fixed assets
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
Other fixed assets, net
Total property and equipment, net

$

$

For the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, depletion expense was $20.70 per barrel of oil equivalent ("BOE") and $20.11 per BOE,
respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, depletion expense was $20.20 per BOE and $18.44 per BOE, respectively.
7. Deferred loan costs
Loan origination fees are stated at cost, net of amortization, which are amortized over the life of the respective debt agreements utilizing the effective
interest and straight-line methods. The Company capitalized $10.5 million and $0.4 million of deferred loan costs in the three months ended June 30,
8
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Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc.
Condensed notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
(Unaudited)
B—Basis of presentation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
2012 and 2011, respectively, and $10.5 million and $10.6 million in the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Company had total
deferred loan costs of $31.7 million and $23.5 million, net of accumulated amortization of $6.7 million and $4.4 million, as of June 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, respectively.
During the six months ended June 30, 2011, the Company wrote off approximately $3.2 million in deferred loan costs as a result of the retirement of debt
and changes in the borrowing base of the Senior Secured Credit Facility (as defined in Note C). No deferred loan costs were written off in the six months
ended June 30, 2012.
Future amortization expense of deferred loan costs at June 30, 2012 is as follows:

(in thousands)

$

Remaining 2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
Thereafter
Total
8.

$

2,534
5,107
5,164
5,225
3,969
9,667
31,666

Asset retirement obligations

Asset retirement obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets are recognized as a liability in the period in which they are
incurred and become determinable. The associated asset retirement costs are part of the carrying amount of the long-lived asset. Subsequently, the asset
retirement cost included in the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset is charged to expense through the depletion of the asset. Changes in the liability
due to the passage of time are recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the liability and as corresponding accretion expense. See Note G for fair
value disclosures related to the Company's asset retirement obligations.
The Company is obligated by contractual and regulatory requirements to remove certain pipeline and gas gathering assets and perform other remediation
of the sites where such pipeline and gas gathering assets are located upon the retirement of those assets. However, the fair value of the asset retirement
obligation cannot currently be reasonably estimated because the settlement dates are indeterminate. The Company will record an asset retirement obligation
for pipeline and gas gathering assets in the periods in which settlement dates are reasonably determinable.
9
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Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc.
Condensed notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
(Unaudited)
B—Basis of presentation and significant accounting policies (Continued)
The following reconciles the Company's asset retirement obligations liability as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011:
Six months ended
June 30, 2012

(in thousands)

Liability at beginning of period
Liabilities added due to acquisitions, drilling and other
Accretion expense
Liabilities settled upon plugging and abandonment
Revision of estimates
Liability at end of period
9.

$

$

13,074
2,270
556
(24)
—
15,876

Year ended
December 31, 2011

$

$

8,278
1,519
616
(340)
3,001
13,074

Fair value measurements

The carrying amounts reported in the unaudited consolidated balance sheets for cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses,
accounts payable, undistributed revenue and royalties, and other accrued liabilities approximate their fair values. See Note C for fair value disclosures related
to the Company's debt obligations. The Company carries its derivative financial instruments at fair value. See Note F and Note G for details regarding the fair
value of the Company's derivative financial instruments.
10.

Compensation awards

For stock-based compensation awards, compensation expense is recognized in "General and adminstrative" in the Company's unaudited consolidated
statements of operations over the awards' vesting periods based on their grant date fair value. The Company utilizes the closing stock price on the date of
grant to determine the fair value of service vesting restricted stock awards and a Black-Scholes pricing model to determine the fair values of service vesting
restricted stock option awards. See Note D for further discussion of the restricted stock awards and restricted stock option awards.
For performance unit awards issued to management with a combination of market and service vesting criteria, a Monte Carlo simulation prepared by an
independent third party is utilized in order to determine the fair value of the awards at the date of grant and to re-measure the fair value at the end of each
reporting period until settlement in accordance with GAAP. Due to the relatively short trading history for the Company's stock, the volatility criteria utilized
in the Monte Carlo simulation is based on the volatilities of a group of peer companies that have been determined to be most representative of the Company's
expected volatility. These awards are accounted for as liability awards as they will be settled in cash at the end of the requisite service period based on the
achievement of certain performance criteria. The liability and related compensation expense for each period for these awards is recognized by dividing the fair
value of the total liability by the requisite service period and recording the pro rata share for the period for which service has already been provided.
Compensation expense for these awards amounted to $0.5 million and $1.0 million in the three and six months ended June 30, 2012, respectively, and is
recognized in "General and administrative" in the Company's unaudited consolidated statements of operations and the corresponding liability is included in
"Other
10
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noncurrent liabilities" in the June 30, 2012 unaudited consolidated balance sheet. As there are inherent uncertainties related to the factors and the Company's
judgment in applying them to the fair value determinations, there is risk that the recorded performance unit compensation may not accurately reflect the
amount ultimately earned by the member of management.
11.

Impairment of long-lived assets

Impairment losses are recorded on property and equipment used in operations and other long-lived assets when indicators of impairment are present and
the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by those assets are less than the assets' carrying amount. Impairment is measured based on the excess
of the carrying amount over the fair value of the asset. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2011, the Company recorded a $0.04 million and a
$0.2 million write-down of materials and supplies, respectively. Other than the aforementioned write-downs, for the three and six months ended June 30, 2012
and 2011, the Company did not record any additional impairment to property and equipment used in operations or other long-lived assets.
12.

Environmental

The Company is subject to extensive federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations. These laws, which are often changing, regulate the
discharge of materials into the environment and may require the Company to remove or mitigate the environmental effects of the disposal or release of
petroleum or chemical substances at various sites. Environmental expenditures are expensed. Expenditures that relate to an existing condition caused by past
operations and that have no future economic benefits are expensed. Liabilities for expenditures of a non-capital nature are recorded when environmental
assessment or remediation is probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated. Such liabilities are generally undiscounted unless the timing of cash
payments is fixed and readily determinable. Management believes no materially significant liabilities of this nature existed at June 30, 2012 or December 31,
2011.
13.

Business combinations

Acquisitions are accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting. Accordingly, the Company conducts assessments of net assets acquired and
recognizes amounts for identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the estimated acquisition date fair values, while transaction and integration costs
associated with the acquisitions are expensed as incurred.
11
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14.

Related party transactions

The following table summarizes the net oil and natural gas sales (oil and natural gas sales less production taxes) received from the Company's related
party and is included in the unaudited consolidated statements of operations for the periods presented:
Three months ended
June 30,
(in thousands)

2012

Six months ended
June 30,

2011

2012

2011

$
18,350 $
18,093 $
37,740 $
33,533
Net oil and natural gas sales(1)
The following table summarizes the amounts included in oil and natural gas sales receivable in the unaudited consolidated balance sheets for the periods
presented:

(in thousands)

June 30, 2012

$

Oil and natural gas sales receivable(1)
(1)

December 31, 2011

5,504

$

6,845

The Company has a gas gathering and processing arrangement with affiliates of Targa Resources, Inc. ("Targa"). Warburg
Pincus IX, a majority stockholder of Laredo Holdings, and other affiliates of Warburg Pincus LLC hold investment interests in
Targa. One of Laredo Holdings' directors is on the board of directors of affiliates of Targa.

C—Debt
1.

Interest expense
The following amounts have been incurred and charged to interest expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011:
Three months ended
June 30,
(in thousands)

2012

Cash payments for interest
Amortization and write-off of deferred loan costs and other adjustments
Change in accrued interest
Interest costs incurred
Less capitalized interest
Total interest expense
12

$

2011

1,356 $ 2,935 $
1,240
4,105
19,204
4,696
21,800
11,736
(126)
—
$ 21,674 $ 11,736 $

Six months ended
June 30,
2012

2011

28,461 $
2,321
6,081
36,863
(505)
36,358 $

6,626
5,155
10,471
22,252
—
22,252
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The following table presents the weighted average interest rates and the weighted average outstanding debt balances for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2012 and 2011:

(in thousands except for
percentages)

Senior Secured Credit
Facility
2019 Notes
2022 Notes
Term Loan(1)
Broad Oak Credit
Facility(2)

2.

Three months ended June 30,
2012
2011
Weighted
Weighted
Weighted average
Weighted average
average interest
average interest
principal rate(3)
principal rate(3)

$270,741
550,000
500,000
—
—

0.17%$ 43,182
2.37% 350,000
1.29%
—
—
—
—

64,541

Six months ended June 30,
2012
2011
Weighted
Weighted
Weighted average
Weighted average
average interest
average interest
principal rate(3)
principal rate(3)

0.55%$190,085
2.37% 550,000
— 500,000
—
—
2.87%

—

0.72%$ 68,056
4.73% 350,000
1.29%
—
— 100,000
—

122,904

0.75%
4.19%
—
0.31%
3.07%

(1)

Laredo's Second Lien Term Loan Agreement was entered into on July 7, 2010 and was paid-in-full and terminated on January 20,
2011.

(2)

The Broad Oak revolving credit facility was paid-in-full and terminated on July 1, 2011.

(3)

Interest rates presented are annual rates which have been prorated to reflect the portion of the year for which they have been incurred.

2022 Notes

On April 27, 2012, Laredo completed an offering of $500 million in aggregate principal amount of 73/8% senior unsecured notes due 2022 (the "2022
Notes"). The 2022 Notes will mature on May 1, 2022 and bear an interest rate of 73/8% per annum, payable semi-annually, in cash in arrears on May 1 and
November 1 of each year, commencing November 1, 2012. The 2022 Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally on a senior
unsecured basis by Laredo Holdings and its subsidiaries, with the exception of Laredo (collectively, the "Guarantors"). The net proceeds from the 2022
Notes (i) were used to pay in full $280.0 million outstanding under Laredo's revolving Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (as amended, the "Senior
Secured Credit Facility"), and (ii) will be used for general working capital purposes.
The 2022 Notes were issued under and are governed by an indenture and supplement thereto, each dated April 27, 2012 (collectively, the "2012
Indenture"), among Laredo, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee, and the Guarantors. The 2012 Indenture contains customary terms, events of
default and covenants relating to, among other things, the incurrence of debt, the payment of dividends or similar restricted payments, entering into
transactions with affiliates and limitations on asset sales. Indebtedness under the 2022 Notes may be accelerated in certain circumstances upon an event of
default as set forth in the 2012 Indenture.
Laredo will have the option to redeem the 2022 Notes, in whole or in part, at any time on or after May 1, 2017, at the redemption prices (expressed as
percentages of principal amount) of 103.688% for the twelve-month period beginning on May 1, 2017, 102.458% for the twelve-month period beginning
13
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on May 1, 2018, 101.229% for the twelve-month period beginning on May 1, 2019 and 100.000% for the twelve-month period beginning on May 1, 2020 and
at any time thereafter, together with any accrued and unpaid interest to, but not including, the date of redemption. In addition, before May 1, 2017, Laredo
may redeem all or any part of the 2022 Notes at a redemption price equal to the sum of the principal amount thereof, plus a make whole premium at the
redemption date, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date. Furthermore, before May 1, 2015, Laredo may, at any time or from time to
time, redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2022 Notes with the net proceeds of a public or private equity offering at a redemption price
of 107.375% of the principal amount of the 2022 Notes, plus any accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redemption, if at least 65% of the aggregate
principal amount of the 2022 Notes issued under the 2012 Indenture remains outstanding immediately after such redemption and the redemption occurs within
180 days of the closing date of such equity offering. Laredo may also be required to make an offer to purchase the 2022 Notes upon a change of control
triggering event. In addition, if a change of control occurs prior to May 1, 2013, Laredo may redeem all, but not less than all, of the notes at a redemption
price equal to 110% of the principal amount of the 2022 Notes redeemed, plus any accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of redemption.
In connection with the issuance of the 2022 Notes, Laredo and the Guarantors entered into a registration rights agreement with the initial purchasers of
the 2022 Notes on April 27, 2012, pursuant to which Laredo and the Guarantors filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") a registration
statement that became effective with respect to an offer to exchange the 2022 Notes for substantially identical notes (other than with respect to restrictions on
transfer or to any increase in annual interest rate) that are registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"). The offer to
exchange the 2022 Notes for substantially identical notes registered under the Securities Act commenced on July 2, 2012 and was consummated on August 1,
2012 with all notes exchanged.
3.

2019 Notes

On January 20, 2011, Laredo completed an offering of $350 million 91/2% Senior Notes due 2019 (the "January Notes") and on October 19, 2011,
Laredo completed an offering of an additional $200 million 91/2% Senior Notes due 2019 (the "October 2011 Notes" and together with the January Notes, the
"2019 Notes"). The 2019 Notes will mature on February 15, 2019 and bear an interest rate of 9.5% per annum payable semi-annually, in cash, in arrears on
February 15 and August 15 of each year. The 2019 Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally on a senior unsecured basis by the
Guarantors.
In connection with the issuance of the 2019 Notes, Laredo and the Guarantors entered into registration rights agreements with the initial purchasers of the
2019 Notes, pursuant to which Laredo and the Guarantors filed with the SEC a registration statement that became effective with respect to an offer to
exchange the 2019 Notes for substantially identical notes (other than with respect to restrictions on transfer or to any increase in annual interest rate)
registered under the Securities Act. The offer to exchange the 2019 Notes for substantially identical notes registered under the Securities Act was
consummated on January 13, 2012 with all notes exchanged.
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4.

Senior secured credit facility

The Senior Secured Credit Facility, which matures July 1, 2016, had a borrowing base of $785.0 million with no amounts outstanding at June 30, 2012. It
contains both financial and non-financial covenants that the Company was in compliance with at June 30, 2012.
Additionally, the Senior Secured Credit Facility provides for the issuance of letters of credit, limited to the lesser of total capacity or $20.0 million. At
June 30, 2012, Laredo had one letter of credit outstanding totaling $0.03 million under the Senior Secured Credit Facility.
5.

Fair value of debt

The Company has not elected to account for its debt instruments at fair value. The following table presents the carrying amount and fair value of the
Company's debt instruments at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011:

June 30, 2012
Carrying
Fair
value
value

(in thousands)

2019 Notes(1)
2022 Notes
Senior Secured Credit Facility(2)
Total value of debt
(1)

$

$

551,863 $
500,000
—
1,051,863 $

616,000 $
521,875
—
1,137,875 $

December 31, 2011
Carrying
Fair
value
value

551,961 $
—
85,000
636,961 $

585,750
—
84,893
670,643

The carrying value of the 2019 Notes includes the October 2011 Notes unamortized bond premium of approximately
$1.9 million and $2.0 million as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.

(2)
No amounts were outstanding under the Senior Secured Credit Facility at June 30, 2012.
At June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the fair value of the debt outstanding on the 2019 Notes and the 2022 Notes was determined using the June 30,
2012 and December 31, 2011 quoted market price (Level 1), respectively, and the fair value of the outstanding debt at December 31, 2011 on the Senior
Secured Credit Facility was estimated utilizing pricing models for similar instruments (Level 2). See Note G for information about fair value hierarchy levels.
D—Stock-based compensation
In November 2011, the Board of Directors of Laredo Holdings and its stockholders approved a Long-Term Incentive Plan (the "LTIP"), which provides
for the granting of incentive awards in the form of stock options, restricted stock awards and other awards. The LTIP provides for the issuance of 10.0 million
shares.
The Company recognizes the fair value of stock-based payments to employees and directors as a charge against earnings. The Company recognizes
stock-based payment expense over the requisite service period. Laredo Holdings' stock-based payment awards are accounted for as equity instruments.
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Stock-based compensation is included in "General and administrative" in the unaudited consolidated statements of operations.
Restricted stock awards
All restricted stock awards are treated as issued and outstanding in the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements. If an employee
terminates employment prior to the restriction lapse date, the awarded shares are forfeited and cancelled and are no longer considered issued and outstanding.
Restricted stock awards converted in the Corporate Reorganization vested 20% at the grant date and then vest 20% annually thereafter. The restricted stock
awards granted under the LTIP vest 33%, 33% and 34% per year beginning on the first anniversary date of the grant. The following table reflects the
outstanding restricted stock awards for the six months ended June 30, 2012:
Restricted
stock
awards

(in thousands, except for weighted
average grant date fair values)

Weighted average
grant date
fair value

911
777
(98)
(233)
1,357

Outstanding at December 31, 2011
Granted
Forfeited
Vested
Outstanding at June 30, 2012

$
$
$
$
$

1.14
23.50
14.93
0.44
13.02

Restricted stock option awards
Restricted stock options granted under the LTIP vest and are exercisable in four equal installments on each of the first four anniversaries of the date of
the grant. The following table reflects the stock option award activity for the six months ended June 30, 2012:
Restricted
stock option
awards

(in thousands, except for weighted average
exercise price and contractual term)

—
603
(54)
549

Outstanding at December 31, 2011
Granted
Forfeited
Outstanding at June 30, 2012

Weighted average
exercise price
(per option)

$
$
$
$

—
24.11
24.11
24.11

Weighted average
contractual term
(years)

—
10
10
10

—

Vested and exercisable at end of period

The Company used the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of restricted stock options and is recognizing the associated
expense on a straight-line basis over the four year requisite service period of the awards. Determining the fair value of equity-based awards requires judgment,
including estimating the expected term that stock options will be outstanding prior to exercise, and the associated volatility. There were no restricted stock
options granted during the three months ended June 30, 2012.
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The assumptions used to estimate the fair value of restricted stock options granted on February 3, 2012 are as follows:

1.07%
6.01
60.18%

Risk-free interest rate(1)
Expected option life(2)
Expected volatility(3)
$

Fair value per option

13.36

(1)

U.S. Treasury yields as of the grant date were utilized for the risk-free interest rate assumption, matching the treasury yield
terms to the expected life of the option.

(2)

As the Company has no historical exercise history, expected option life assumptions were developed using the simplified
method in accordance with GAAP.

(3)

The Company utilized a peer historical look-back, weighted with the Company's own volatility since the IPO, to develop the
expected volatility.

E—Income taxes
Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes.
The Company is subject to corporate income taxes and the Texas margin tax. Income tax expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2012 and
2011 consisted of the following:
Three months ended
June 30,
(in thousands)

Current taxes
Federal
State
Deferred taxes
Federal
State
Income tax expense

2012

$

$

2011

—
—
17,055
369
17,424
17

Six months ended
June 30,

$

$

2012

2011

— $
—

— $
—

—
—

22,254
886
23,140 $

30,847
1,334
32,181 $

24,528
1,209
25,737
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Income tax expense differed from amounts computed by applying the federal income tax rate of 34% to pre-tax income from operations as a result of the
following:
Three months ended
June 30,
(in thousands)

2012

Six months ended
June 30,

2011

2012

2011

$ 16,456 $ 21,832 $ 30,393 $ 24,303
1,395
1,478
1,900
1,189
—
(6)
—
(16)
275
187
655
287
1
193
2
2
(703)
(544)
(769)
(28)
$ 17,424 $ 23,140 $ 32,181 $ 25,737

Income tax expense computed by applying the statutory rate
State income tax, net of federal tax benefit and increase in valuation allowance
Income from non-taxable entity
Non-deductible compensation
Change in valuation allowance
Other items
Income tax expense

Significant components of the Company's deferred tax assets as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 are as follows:

(in thousands)

June 30, 2012

$

Derivative financial instruments
Oil and natural gas properties and equipment
Net operating loss carry-forward
Other
Valuation allowance
Net deferred tax asset

$

December 31, 2011

(3,526)
(119,354)
186,222
705
64,047
(650)
63,397

$

$

3,551
(87,138)
180,740
(926)
96,227
(649)
95,578

Net deferred tax assets and liabilities were classified in the unaudited consolidated balance sheets as follows as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011:

(in thousands)

June 30, 2012

$

Deferred tax asset
Deferred tax liability
Net deferred tax assets

$

64,903
1,506
63,397

December 31, 2011

$
$

95,578
—
95,578

The Company had federal net operating loss carry-forwards totaling approximately $527.3 million and state net operating loss carry-forwards totaling
approximately $180.9 million at June 30, 2012. These carry-forwards begin expiring in 2026. The Company maintains a valuation allowance to reduce certain
deferred tax assets to amounts that are more likely than not to be realized. At June 30, 2012, a $0.6 million valuation allowance was recorded against the state
of Louisiana deferred tax asset and a $0.03 million valuation allowance was recorded against the Company's charitable contribution carry-forward. The
Company believes the federal and state of Oklahoma net operating loss carry-forwards
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are fully realizable. The Company considered all available evidence, both positive and negative, in determining whether, based on the weight of that evidence,
a valuation allowance was needed. Such consideration included estimated future projected earnings based on existing reserves and projected future cash flows
from its oil and natural gas reserves (including the timing of those cash flows), the reversal of deferred tax liabilities recorded at June 30, 2012 and the
Company's ability to capitalize intangible drilling costs, rather than expensing these costs, in order to prevent an operating loss carry-forward from expiring
unused.
The Company's income tax returns for the years 2008 through 2011 remain open and subject to examination by federal tax authorities and/or the tax
authorities in Oklahoma, Texas and Louisiana which are the jurisdictions where the Company has or had operations. Additionally, the statute of limitations for
examination of federal net operating loss carryovers typically does not begin to run until the year the attribute is utilized in a tax return. In evaluating its
current tax positions in order to identify any material uncertain tax positions, the Company developed a policy in identifying uncertain tax positions that
considers support for each tax position, industry standards, tax return disclosures and schedules, and the significance of each position. The Company had no
material adjustments to its unrecognized tax benefits during the six months ended June 30, 2012.
F—Derivative financial instruments
1.

Commodity derivatives

The Company engages in derivative transactions such as collars, swaps, puts and basis swaps to hedge price risks due to unfavorable changes in oil and
natural gas prices related to its oil and natural gas production. As of June 30, 2012, the Company had 54 open derivative contracts with financial institutions,
none of which were designated as hedges for accounting purposes, which extend from July 2012 to December 2015. The contracts are recorded at fair value
on the balance sheet and any realized and unrealized gains and losses are recognized in current year earnings.
Each collar transaction has an established price floor and ceiling. When the settlement price is below the price floor established by these collars, the
Company receives an amount from its counterparty equal to the difference between the settlement price and the price floor multiplied by the hedged contract
volume. When the settlement price is above the price ceiling established by these collars, the Company pays its counterparty an amount equal to the difference
between the settlement price and the price ceiling multiplied by the hedged contract volume.
Each swap transaction has an established fixed price. When the settlement price is above the fixed price, the Company pays its counterparty an amount
equal to the difference between the settlement price and the fixed price multiplied by the hedged contract volume. When the settlement price is below the
fixed price, the counterparty pays the Company an amount equal to the difference between the settlement price and the fixed price multiplied by the hedged
contract volume.
Each put transaction has an established floor price. The Company pays the counterparty a premium in order to enter into the put transaction. When the
settlement price is below the floor price, the counterparty pays the Company an amount equal to the difference between the settlement price and the fixed
price multiplied by the hedged contract volume. When the settlement price is above the floor price, the put option expires.
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Each basis swap transaction has an established fixed differential between the NYMEX gas futures and West Texas WAHA ("WAHA") index gas price.
When the NYMEX futures settlement price less the fixed WAHA differential is greater than the actual WAHA price, the difference multiplied by the hedged
contract volume is paid to the Company by the counterparty. When the difference between the NYMEX futures settlement price less the fixed WAHA
differential is less than the actual WAHA price, the Company pays the counterparty an amount equal to the difference multiplied by the hedged contract
volume.
During the six months ended June 30, 2012, the Company entered into additional commodity contracts to hedge a portion of its estimated future
production. The following table summarizes information about these additional commodity derivative contracts. When aggregating multiple contracts, the
weighted average contract price is disclosed.
Aggregate Swap
volumes price

Oil (volumes in Bbls):
Price collar
Price collar
Price collar
Put
Price collar
Put
Put
Put
Natural gas (volumes in
MMBtu):
Swap
Price collar

270,000
240,000
198,000
360,000
252,000
360,000
180,000
96,000

Floor
price

Ceiling
price

Contract period

— $90.00 $126.50 April 2012 - December 2012
— $90.00 $118.35 January 2013 - December 2013
— $70.00 $140.00 January 2014 - December 2014
— $75.00
— January 2014 - December 2014
— $75.00 $135.00 January 2015 - December 2015
— $75.00
— January 2015 - December 2015
— $75.00
— January 2014 - December 2014
— $75.00
— January 2015 - December 2015

700,000 $2.72
—
700,000
— $ 3.25 $

—
3.90

April 2012 - October 2012
April 2013 - October 2013
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The following table summarizes open positions as of June 30, 2012, and represents, as of such date, derivatives in place through December 31, 2015, on
annual production volumes:
Remaining
year
2012

Oil Positions:
Puts:
Hedged volume (Bbls)
Weighted average price ($/Bbl)
Swaps:
Hedged volume (Bbls)
Weighted average price ($/Bbl)
Collars:
Hedged volume (Bbls)
Weighted average floor price ($/Bbl)
Weighted average ceiling price ($/Bbl)
Natural Gas Positions:
Puts:
Hedged volume (MMBtu)
Weighted average price ($/MMBtu)
Swaps:
Hedged volume (MMBtu)
Weighted average price ($/MMBtu)
Collars:
Hedged volume (MMBtu)
Weighted average floor price ($/MMBtu)
Weighted average ceiling price ($/MMBtu)
Basis swaps(1):
Hedged volume (MMBtu)
Weighted average price ($/MMBtu)

Year
2013

Year
2014

Year
2015

$

336,000
65.79 $

1,080,000
65.00 $

540,000
75.00 $

456,000
75.00

$

366,000
93.52 $

600,000
96.32 $

—
— $

—
—

$
$

603,000
79.50 $
118.09 $

768,000
79.38 $
121.67 $

726,000
75.45 $
129.09 $

252,000
75.00
135.00

$

2,160,000
5.38 $

6,600,000
4.00 $

—
— $

—
—

$

1,240,000
5.04 $

—
— $

—
— $

—
—

$
$

3,900,000
4.12 $
5.79 $

7,300,000
3.93 $
6.75 $

6,960,000
4.00 $
7.03 $

—
—
—

$

1,440,000
0.31 $

1,200,000
0.33 $

—
— $

—
—

(1)

2.

The cash settlement price of the Company's basis swaps is calculated on the difference between the Company's natural gas futures
contracts that settle on the NYMEX index and the NYMEX index price at the time of settlement. At June 30, 2012, the Company had
200,000 MMBtu for the remainder of 2012 and 500,000 MMBtu for 2013 in basis swaps that did not have corresponding volumes
hedged with a NYMEX index price.
Interest rate derivatives

The Company is exposed to market risk for changes in interest rates related to its Senior Secured Credit Facility. Interest rate derivative agreements are
used to manage a portion of the exposure related to changing interest rates by converting floating-rate debt to fixed-rate debt. If LIBOR is lower than the fixed
rate in the contract, the Company is required to pay the counterparties the difference,
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and conversely, the counterparties are required to pay the Company if LIBOR is higher than the fixed rate in the contract. The Company did not designate the
interest rate derivatives as cash flow hedges; therefore, the changes in fair value of these instruments are recorded in current earnings.
The following presents the settlement terms of the interest rate derivatives at June 30, 2012:
Year
2012

(in thousands except rate data)

Notional amount
Fixed rate
Notional amount
Cap rate
Total
3.

$
$
$

Year
2013

50,000 $
1.11%
50,000 $
3.00%
100,000 $

Expiration date

50,000
1.11%
50,000
3.00%
100,000

September 13, 2013
September 13, 2013

Balance sheet presentation

The Company's oil and natural gas commodity derivatives and interest rate derivatives are presented on a net basis in "Derivative financial instruments"
in the unaudited consolidated balance sheets.
The following summarizes the fair value of derivatives outstanding on a gross basis as of:

(in thousands)

June 30, 2012

Assets:
Commodity derivatives:
Oil derivatives
Natural gas derivatives
Interest rate derivatives

$

$
Liabilities:
Commodity derivatives:
Oil derivatives(1)
Natural gas derivatives(2)
Interest rate derivatives

$

$
(1)

December 31, 2011

33,033
28,980
—
62,013

$

23,691
5,231
365
29,287

$

$

$

16,026
34,019
11
50,056

28,044
6,832
1,991
36,867

The oil derivatives fair value includes a deferred premium liability of $19.7 million and $13.4 million at June 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, respectively.

(2)

The natural gas derivatives fair value includes a deferred premium liability of $3.9 million and $5.4 million at June 30, 2012
and December 31, 2011, respectively.
By using derivative instruments to economically hedge exposures to changes in commodity prices and interest rates, the Company exposes itself to credit
risk and market risk. Credit risk is the failure of
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F—Derivative financial instruments (Continued)
the counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative contract. When the fair value of a derivative contract is positive, the counterparty owes the
Company, which creates credit risk. The Company's counterparties are participants in the Senior Secured Credit Facility which is secured by the Company's
oil and natural gas reserves; therefore, the Company is not required to post any collateral. The Company does not require collateral from its counterparties.
The Company minimizes the credit risk in derivative instruments by: (i) limiting its exposure to any single counterparty; (ii) entering into derivative
instruments only with counterparties that are also lenders in the Senior Secured Credit Facility and meet the Company's minimum credit quality standard, or
have a guarantee from an affiliate that meets the Company's minimum credit quality standard; and (iii) monitoring the creditworthiness of the Company's
counterparties on an ongoing basis. In accordance with the Company's standard practice, its commodity and interest rate derivatives are subject to
counterparty netting under agreements governing such derivatives and, therefore, the risk of such loss is somewhat mitigated at June 30, 2012.
4. Gain (loss) on derivatives
Gains and losses on derivatives are reported on the unaudited consolidated statements of operations in the respective "Realized and unrealized gain
(loss)" amounts. Realized gains (losses) represent amounts related to the settlement of derivative instruments, and for commodity derivatives, are aligned with
the underlying production. Unrealized gains (losses) represent the change in fair value of the derivative instruments and are non-cash items.
The following represents the Company's reported gains and losses on derivative instruments for the three and six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011:
Three months ended
June 30,
(in thousands)

Realized gains (losses):
Commodity derivatives
Interest rate derivatives

2012

$

Unrealized gains (losses):
Commodity derivatives
Interest rate derivatives
Total gains (losses):
Commodity derivatives
Interest rate derivatives
$

Six months ended
June 30,

2011

9,115 $
(835)
8,280

2012

2011

(1,584) $
(1,255)
(2,839)

13,823 $
(1,938)
11,885

(931)
(2,556)
(3,487)

19,428
835
20,263

20,033
279
20,312

15,314
1,615
16,929

(8,654)
1,462
(7,192)

28,543
—
28,543

18,449
(976)
17,473 $

29,137
(323)
28,814 $

23
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The Company accounts for its oil and natural gas commodity and interest rate derivatives at fair value. The fair value of derivative financial instruments
is determined utilizing pricing models for similar instruments. The models use a variety of techniques to arrive at fair value, including quotes and pricing
analysis. Inputs to the pricing models include publicly available prices and forward curves generated from a compilation of data gathered from third parties.
The Company has categorized its assets and liabilities measured at fair value, based on the priority of inputs to the valuation technique, into a three-level
fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3).
Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on the unaudited consolidated balance sheets are categorized based on the inputs to the valuation techniques
as follows:

Level 1—

Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value for which values are based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in an
active market that management has the ability to access. Active markets are considered to be those in which transactions for the assets or
liabilities occur in sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Level 2—

Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value for which values are based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or model inputs that
are observable either directly or indirectly for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. Substantially all of these inputs are
observable in the marketplace throughout the full term of the price risk management instrument, can be derived from observable data or
supported by observable levels at which transactions are executed in the marketplace.

Level 3—

Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value for which values are based on prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both
unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement. Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data. These
inputs reflect management's own assumptions about the assumptions a market participant would use in pricing the asset or liability.
When the inputs used to measure fair value fall within different levels of the hierarchy in a liquid environment, the level within which the fair value
measurement is categorized is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. The Company conducts a review
of fair value hierarchy classifications on an annual basis. Changes in the observability of valuation inputs may result in a reclassification for certain financial
assets or liabilities. Transfers between fair value hierarchy levels are recognized and reported in the period in which the transfer occurred. No transfers
between fair value hierarchy levels occurred during the three and six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011.
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Fair value measurement on a recurring basis
The following presents the Company's fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at June 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011.

(in thousands)

As of June 30, 2012:
Commodity derivatives
Deferred premiums
Interest rate derivatives
Total

(in thousands)

As of December 31, 2011:
Commodity derivatives
Deferred premiums
Interest rate derivatives
Total

Level 1

$

$

— $
—
—
— $

Level 1

$

$

— $
—
—
— $

Level 2

56,643 $
—
(365)
56,278 $

Level 2

34,037 $
—
(1,980)
32,057 $

Level 3

— $
(23,552)
—
(23,552) $

Level 3

— $
(18,868)
—
(18,868) $

Total fair
value

56,643
(23,552)
(365)
32,726

Total fair
value

34,037
(18,868)
(1,980)
13,189

These items are included in "Derivative financial instruments" on the unaudited consolidated balance sheets. Significant Level 2 assumptions associated
with the calculation of discounted cash flows used in the "mark-to-market" analysis of commodity derivatives include the NYMEX natural gas and crude oil
prices, appropriate risk adjusted discount rates and other relevant data. Significant Level 2 assumptions associated with the calculation of discounted cash
flows used in the "mark-to-market" analysis of interest rate swaps include the interest rate curves, appropriate risk adjusted discount rates and other relevant
data.
The Company's deferred premiums associated with its commodity derivative contracts are categorized in Level 3, as the Company utilizes a net present
value calculation to determine the valuation. They are considered to be measured on a recurring basis as the derivative contracts they derive from are
measured on a recurring basis. As commodity derivative contracts containing deferred premiums are entered into, the Company discounts the associated
deferred premium to its net present value at the contract trade date, using the Senior Secured Credit Facility rate at the trade date (historical input rates range
from 2.06% to 3.56%) and then amortizing the change in net present value into interest expense over the period from trade until the final settlement date at the
end of the contract. After this initial valuation the net present value of each deferred premium is not adjusted, therefore significant increases (decreases) in the
Senior Secured Credit Facility rate would result in a significantly lower (higher) fair value measurement for each new deal containing a deferred premium
entered into; however the valuation for the deals already recorded would remain unaffected. While the Company believes the sources utilized to arrive at the
fair value estimates are reliable, different sources or methods could have yielded different fair value estimates; therefore on a quarterly basis, the valuation is
compared to counterparty valuations and third party valuation of the deferred premiums
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for reasonableness. A summary of the changes in assets classified as Level 3 measurements for the three and six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 are as
follows:
Three months
Six months
ended June 30, 2012
ended June 30, 2012
Derivative
Derivative
option
Deferred
option
Deferred
contracts premiums contracts premiums

(in thousands)

Balance of Level 3 at beginning of period(1)
Realized and unrealized gains included in earnings
Amortization of deferred premiums
Total purchases and settlements:
Purchases
Settlements
Balance of Level 3 at end of period
Change in unrealized losses attributed to earnings relating to derivatives still held
at end of period

$

— $ (23,061)
—
—
—
(169)

$

— $ (18,868)
—
—
—
(319)

$

—
(1,917)
—
1,595
— $ (23,552)

$

—
(7,292)
—
2,927
— $ (23,552)

$

— $

$

— $

—

—

Three months
Six months
ended June 30, 2011 ended June 30, 2011
Derivative
Derivative
option Deferred
option
Deferred
contracts premiums contracts premiums

(in thousands)

Balance of Level 3 at beginning of period
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) included in earnings
Amortization of deferred premiums
Total purchases and settlements:
Purchases
Settlements
Balance of Level 3 at end of period
Change in unrealized gains attributed to earnings relating to derivatives still held at
end of period

$ 12,856 $(12,581) $ 20,026 $(12,495)
521
— (6,588)
—
—
(109)
—
(216)
561
—
500
—
—
20
—
41
$ 13,938 $(12,670) $ 13,938 $(12,670)
$ 10,638 $

— $ 1,970 $

—

(1)

The Company transferred the commodity derivative option contracts out of Level 3 during the year ended December 31, 2011 due to
the Company's ability to utilize transparent forward price curves and volatilities published and available through independent third
party vendors. As a result, the Company transferred positions from Level 3 to Level 2 as the significant inputs used to calculate the fair
value are all observable.
Fair value measurement on a nonrecurring basis
The Company accounts for additions to its asset retirement obligation (see Note B.8) and the impairment of long-lived assets (see Note B.11), if any, at
fair value on a nonrecurring basis in
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accordance with GAAP. For purposes of fair value measurement, it was determined that the impairment of long-lived assets and the additions to the asset
retirement obligation are classified as Level 3 based on the use of internally developed cash flow models. No impairments of long-lived assets were recorded
in the six months ended June 30, 2012.
Inherent in the fair value calculation of asset retirement obligations are numerous assumptions and judgments including, in addition to those noted above,
the ultimate settlement of these amounts, the ultimate timing of such settlement, and changes in legal, regulatory, environmental and political environments.
To the extent future revisions to these assumptions impact the fair value of the existing asset retirement obligation liability, a corresponding adjustment will
be made to the asset balance.
Asset retirement obligations. The accounting policies for asset retirement obligations are discussed in Note B.8, including a reconciliation of the
Company's asset retirement obligation. The fair value of additions to the asset retirement obligation liability is measured using valuation techniques consistent
with the income approach, which converts future cash flows to a single discounted amount. Significant inputs to the valuation include: (i) estimated plug and
abandonment cost per well based on Company experience; (ii) estimated remaining life per well based on the reserve life per well; (iii) future inflation factors;
and (iv) the Company's average credit adjusted risk free rate.
Impairment of oil and natural gas properties. The accounting policies for impairment of oil and natural gas properties are discussed in the audited
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in the 2011 Annual Report. Significant inputs included in the calculation of discounted cash
flows used in the impairment analysis include the Company's estimate of operating and development costs, anticipated production of proved reserves and
other relevant data.
H—Credit risk
The Company's oil and natural gas sales are to a variety of purchasers, including intrastate and interstate pipelines or their marketing affiliates and
independent marketing companies. The Company's joint operations accounts receivable are from a number of oil and natural gas companies, partnerships,
individuals and others who own interests in the properties operated by the Company. Management believes that any credit risk imposed by a concentration in
the oil and natural gas industry is offset by the creditworthiness of the Company's customer base and industry partners. The Company routinely assesses the
recoverability of all material trade and other receivables to determine collectability.
The Company uses derivative instruments to hedge its exposure to oil and natural gas price volatility and its exposure to interest rate risk associated with
the Senior Secured Credit Facility. These transactions expose the Company to potential credit risk from its counterparties. In accordance with the Company's
standard practice, its derivative instruments are subject to counterparty netting under agreements governing such derivatives and therefore, the credit risk
associated with its derivative counterparties is somewhat mitigated. See Note F for additional information regarding the Company's derivative instruments.
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1.

Lease commitments

The Company leases equipment and office space under operating leases expiring on various dates through 2016. Minimum annual lease commitments at
June 30, 2012 and for the calendar years following are as follows:

(in thousands)

$

Remaining 2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
Total

720
1,448
1,102
731
282
4,283

$

The following table presents rent expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011.
Three months ended
June 30,
(in thousands)

2012

2011

Six months ended
June 30,
2012

2011

$
295
$
307
$
602
$
590
Rent expense
The Company's office space lease agreements contain scheduled escalation in lease payments during the term of the lease. In accordance with GAAP, the
Company records rent expense on a straight-line basis and a deferred lease liability for the difference between the straight-line amount and the actual amounts
of the lease payments.
2.

Litigation

The Company may be involved in legal proceedings or is subject to industry rulings that could bring rise to claims in the ordinary course of business. The
Company has concluded that the likelihood is remote that the ultimate resolution of any pending litigation or pending claims will be material or have a
material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial position, results of operations or liquidity.
3. Drilling contracts
The Company has committed to several short-term drilling contracts with various third parties in order to complete its various drilling projects. The
contracts contain an early termination clause that requires the Company to pay significant penalties to the third party should the Company cease drilling
efforts. These penalties could significantly impact the Company's financial statements upon contract termination. These commitments are not recorded in the
accompanying unaudited consolidated balance sheets. Future commitments as of June 30, 2012 are $35.8 million. Management does not anticipate canceling
any drilling contracts or discontinuing drilling efforts in 2012.
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4.

Federal and state regulations

Oil and natural gas exploration, production and related operations are subject to extensive federal and state laws, rules and regulations. Failure to comply
with these laws, rules and regulations can result in substantial penalties. The regulatory burden on the oil and natural gas industry increases the cost of doing
business and affects profitability. The Company believes that it is in compliance with currently applicable state and federal regulations and these regulations
will not have a material adverse impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Company. Because these rules and regulations are frequently
amended or reinterpreted, the Company is unable to predict the future cost or impact of complying with these regulations.
J—Defined contribution plans
The Company sponsors a 401(k) defined contribution plan for the benefit of substantially all employees at the date of hire. The plan allows eligible
employees to make tax-deferred contributions up to 100% of their annual compensation, not to exceed annual limits established by the federal government.
The Company makes matching contributions of up to 6% of an employee's compensation and may make additional discretionary contributions for eligible
employees. Employees are 100% vested in the employer contributions upon receipt.
The following table presents total contributions to the plans for the three and six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011.
Three months ended
June 30,
(in thousands)

Contributions
K—Net income per share

2012

$

Six months ended
June 30,

2011

325

$

2012

326

$

2011

642

$

855

Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of shares outstanding for the period. Diluted net income
per share reflects the potential dilution of non-vested restricted stock awards. The effect of the Company's outstanding options to purchase 549,446 shares of
common stock at $24.11 per share were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2012 because
the exercise price of those options was greater than the average market price during the period, and therefore the inclusion of these outstanding options would
have been anti-dilutive. The following is the calculation of basic and
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diluted weighted average shares outstanding and net income per share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2012:
Three months ended
June 30, 2012

(in thousands, except for per share data)

Income (numerator):
Net income—basic and diluted
Weighted average shares (denominator):
Weighted average shares—basic
Non-vested restricted stock
Weighted average shares—diluted

$

30,975

Six months ended
June 30, 2012

$

126,921
1,301
128,222

Net income per share:
Basic
Diluted
L—Recently issued accounting standards

$
$

0.24
0.24

57,210
126,862
1,239
128,101

$
$

0.45
0.45

In December 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2011-11, Disclosures about Offsetting
Assets and Liabilities, to improve reporting and transparency of offsetting (netting) assets and liabilities and the related effects on the financial statements.
This ASU is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The Company does not expect the
adoption of this ASU to have a material effect on its consolidated financial statements.
M—Subsidiary guarantees
Laredo Holdings and all of Laredo's wholly-owned subsidiaries (Laredo Gas, Laredo Texas and Laredo Dallas, collectively, the "Subsidiary Guarantors")
have fully and unconditionally guaranteed the 2019 Notes, the 2022 Notes and the Senior Secured Credit Facility. In accordance with practices accepted by
the SEC, Laredo has prepared condensed consolidating financial statements in order to quantify the assets, results of operations and cash flows of such
subsidiaries as subsidiary guarantors. The following unaudited condensed consolidating balance sheet as of June 30, 2012 and audited condensed
consolidating balance sheet as of December 31, 2011, unaudited condensed consolidating statements of operations for the three and six months ended June 30,
2012 and 2011, and unaudited condensed consolidating statements of cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, present financial
information for Laredo Holdings as the parent of Laredo on a stand-alone basis (carrying any investments in subsidiaries under the equity method), financial
information for Laredo on a stand-alone basis (carrying any investment in subsidiaries under the equity method), financial information for the Subsidiary
Guarantors on a stand-alone basis (carrying any investment in subsidiaries under the equity method), and the consolidation and elimination entries necessary
to arrive at the information for the Company on a condensed consolidated basis. All deferred income taxes are recorded on Laredo's statements of financial
position, as Laredo's subsidiaries are flow-through entities for income tax purposes. Prior to the Broad Oak acquisition on July 1, 2011, both Laredo and
Laredo
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Dallas were separate taxable entities and deferred income taxes for the Company are recorded separately. The Subsidiary Guarantors are not restricted from
making distributions to Laredo.

Condensed consolidating balance sheet
June 30, 2012
(unaudited)

(in thousands)

Laredo
Holdings

Accounts receivable
Other current assets
Total oil and natural gas properties, net
Total pipeline and gas gathering assets, net
Total other fixed assets, net
Investment in subsidiaries
Total other long-term assets
Total assets

$

Accounts payable
Other current liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Long-term debt
Stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

$

Laredo

Subsidiary Intercompany Consolidated
Guarantors eliminations
company

— $ 54,616 $ 17,216 $
— $ 71,832
—
172,615
199
—
172,814
—
999,604 686,579
— 1,686,183
—
—
55,767
—
55,767
—
11,686
2,769
—
14,455
942,804
619,841
— (1,562,645)
—
—
114,887
—
—
114,887
$ 942,804 $ 1,973,249 $ 762,530 $ (1,562,645) $ 2,115,938
1 $ 29,730 $ 19,580 $
— $ 49,311
—
126,691
48,024
—
174,715
—
9,443
8,548
—
17,991
— 1,051,863
—
— 1,051,863
942,803
755,522 686,378 (1,562,645)
822,058
$ 942,804 $ 1,973,249 $ 762,530 $ (1,562,645) $ 2,115,938
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Condensed consolidating balance sheet
December 31, 2011
(audited)
Laredo
Holdings

(in thousands)

Accounts receivable
Other current assets
Total oil and natural gas properties, net
Total pipeline and gas gathering assets, net
Total other fixed assets, net
Investment in subsidiaries
Total other long-term assets
Total assets

$

Accounts payable
Other current liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Long-term debt
Stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

$

Laredo

Subsidiary Intercompany Consolidated
Guarantors eliminations
company

— $ 53,006 $ 21,129 $
— $ 74,135
54,921
20,599
204
(26,921)
48,803
—
780,152 535,525
— 1,315,677
—
—
51,742
—
51,742
—
10,321
769
—
11,090
888,043
554,901
— (1,442,944)
—
—
126,205
—
—
126,205
$ 942,964 $ 1,545,184 $ 609,369 $ (1,469,865) $ 1,627,652
1 $ 58,729 $ 14,198 $
(26,921) $ 46,007
—
130,990
37,364
—
168,354
—
8,779
7,538
—
16,317
—
636,961
—
—
636,961
942,963
709,725 550,269 (1,442,944)
760,013
$ 942,964 $ 1,545,184 $ 609,369 $ (1,469,865) $ 1,627,652

Condensed consolidating statement of operations
For the three months ended June 30, 2012
(unaudited)

(in thousands)

Total operating revenues
Total operating costs and expenses
Income (loss) from operations
Interest income (expense), net
Other, net
Income (loss) from operations before income tax
Income tax expense
Net income (loss)

Laredo
Holdings

$

Laredo

Subsidiary Intercompany Consolidated
Guarantors eliminations
company

— $ 76,692 $ 66,570
140 64,951
36,648
(140) 11,741
29,922
— (21,659)
—
— 28,543
(8)
(140) 18,625
29,914
— (17,424)
—
$ (140)$ 1,201 $ 29,914
32

$

$

(2,638) $ 140,624
(2,638)
99,101
—
41,523
—
(21,659)
—
28,535
—
48,399
—
(17,424)
— $ 30,975
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Condensed consolidating statement of operations
For the three months ended June 30, 2011
(unaudited)
Laredo
Holdings

(in thousands)

Total operating revenues
Total operating costs and expenses
Income from operations
Interest income (expense), net
Other, net
Income from operations before income tax
Income tax expense
Net income

$

Laredo

Subsidiary
Guarantors

Intercompany
eliminations

— $ 59,958 $ 73,489
— 40,320
34,656
— 19,638
38,833
19 (9,203)
(2,530)
—
3,113
14,342
19 13,548
50,645
— (5,323)
(17,817)
19 $ 8,225 $ 32,828

$

$

Consolidated
company

(1,720) $
(1,720)
—
—
—
—
—
— $

$

131,727
73,256
58,471
(11,714)
17,455
64,212
(23,140)
41,072

Condensed consolidating statement of operations
For the six months ended June 30, 2012
(unaudited)

(in thousands)

Total operating revenues
Total operating costs and expenses
Income (loss) from operations
Interest income (expense), net
Other, net
Income (loss) from operations before income tax
Income tax expense
Net income (loss)

Laredo
Holdings

$

Laredo

Subsidiary Intercompany Consolidated
Guarantors eliminations
company

— $ 152,458 $
159 126,564
(159) 25,894
— (36,327)
—
28,814
(159) 18,381
— (32,181)
$ (159)$ (13,800) $
33

143,403
72,226
71,177
—
(8)
71,169
—
71,169

$

$

(4,889) $ 290,972
(4,889)
194,060
—
96,912
—
(36,327)
—
28,806
—
89,391
—
(32,181)
— $ 57,210
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Condensed consolidating statement of operations
For the six months ended June 30, 2011
(unaudited)
Laredo
Holdings

(in thousands)

Total operating revenues
Total operating costs and expenses
Income (loss) from operations
Interest income (expense), net
Other, net
Income from operations before income tax
Income tax expense
Net income

$

$

Laredo

— $
7
(7)
55
—
48
—
48 $

Subsidiary
Guarantors

Intercompany
eliminations

102,482 $ 139,650
71,859
62,633
30,623
77,017
(17,152)
(5,097)
(5,696)
(8,264)
7,775
63,656
(4,336)
(21,401)
3,439 $ 42,255

$

$

Consolidated
company

(3,294) $ 238,838
(3,294)
131,205
—
107,633
—
(22,194)
—
(13,960)
—
71,479
—
(25,737)
— $ 45,742

Condensed consolidating statement of cash flows
For the six months ended June 30, 2012
(unaudited)

(in thousands)

Laredo
Holdings

Laredo

Subsidiary Intercompany Consolidated
Guarantors eliminations
company

Net cash flows provided by (used in) operating
$ (160)$ 49,843 $ 123,186 $ 26,921 $ 199,790
activities
Net cash flows provided by used in investing
(54,761) (307,882) (123,188)
— (485,831)
activities
— 404,524
—
—
404,524
Net cash flows provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
(54,921) 146,485
(2)
26,921
118,483
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
54,921
—
2
(26,921)
28,002
period
$
—
$
146,485
$
—
$
—
$
146,485
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
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Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc.
Condensed notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
(Unaudited)
M—Subsidiary guarantees (Continued)
Condensed consolidating statement of cash flows
For the six months ended June 30, 2011
(unaudited)

(in thousands)

Laredo
Holdings

Laredo

Subsidiary Intercompany Consolidated
Guarantors eliminations
company

47 $ 65,580 $ 102,583 $ (6,152) $ 162,058
Net cash flows provided by operating activities $
(7,318) (203,452) (148,679)
— (359,449)
Net cash flows used in investing activities
— 137,872
50,336
—
188,208
Net cash flows provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
(7,271)
—
4,240
(6,152)
(9,183)
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
38,652
—
6,489
(13,906)
31,235
period
$31,381 $
— $ 10,729 $ (20,058) $ 22,052
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
N—Subsequent events
1.

Acquisition

On July 12, 2012, the Company completed the acquisition of additional working interest in certain oil and natural gas properties located in Glasscock
County, TX for a contract price of $20.5 million from a private company, subject to certain purchase price adjustments. The initial accounting for the business
combination is not complete pending detailed analyses of the facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.
2.

New derivative contracts

Subsequent to June 30, 2012, the Company entered into additional commodity contracts, with approximately $4.2 million in deferred premiums
associated. The following table summarizes information about these new commodity derivative contracts. When aggregating multiple contracts, the weighted
average contract price is disclosed.
Aggregate
volumes

Natural gas (volumes in MMBtu):
Price collar
Price collar
Price collar

Floor Ceiling
price price

8,760,000 $ 3.00 $ 5.00
11,160,000 $ 3.00 $ 5.50
15,480,000 $ 3.00 $ 6.00
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Contract period

January 2013 - December 2013
January 2014 - December 2014
January 2015 - December 2015
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Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc.
Condensed notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
(Unaudited)
O—Supplementary information
Costs incurred in oil and natural gas property acquisition, exploration and development activities(1)
Costs incurred in the acquisition and development of oil and natural gas assets are presented below for the three and six months ended June 30, 2012 and
2011:
Three months ended
June 30,
(in thousands)

Property acquisition costs:
Proved
Unproved
Exploration
Development costs
Total costs incurred
(1)

2012

$

$

— $
—
22,219
232,508
254,727 $

2011

— $
—
12,973
160,747
173,720 $

Six months ended
June 30,
2012

— $
—
51,686
427,599
479,285 $

2011

—
—
21,868
312,390
334,258

The costs incurred for oil and natural gas development activities include $1.4 million and $0.2 million in asset retirement
obligations for the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and $2.3 million and $0.5 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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Item 2.

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the unaudited consolidated
financial statements and condensed notes thereto included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q as well as our audited consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 (the "2011 Annual Report"). The following
discussion contains "forward-looking statements" that reflect our future plans, estimates, beliefs and expected performance. We caution that assumptions,
expectations, projections, intentions or beliefs about future events may, and often do, vary from actual results and the differences can be material. Please see
"Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements."
Except for purposes of the unaudited consolidated financial statements and condensed notes thereto included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q, references in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to "Laredo," "we," "us," "our" or similar terms refer to Laredo Petroleum, LLC together with
its subsidiaries for periods prior to the Corporate Reorganization, and to Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc. together with its subsidiaries for periods after the
Corporate Reorganization, unless the context otherwise indicates or requires. For more information regarding the Corporate Reorganization and IPO, see
Note A to our unaudited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
Overview
We are an independent energy company focused on the exploration, development and acquisition of oil and natural gas properties in the Permian and
Mid-Continent regions of the United States. Laredo was founded in October 2006 to explore, develop and operate oil and natural gas properties and has grown
rapidly through its drilling program and by making strategic acquisitions and joint ventures. On July 1, 2011, we completed the acquisition of Broad Oak
Energy, Inc. ("Broad Oak"), whereby Broad Oak became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Laredo Petroleum, Inc., and its name was changed to Laredo
Petroleum—Dallas, Inc. This acquisition was considered a combination of entities under common control and the historical and financial operating data
presented herein are shown on a consolidated basis. In December 2011, we completed the Corporate Reorganization and IPO.
Our financial and operating performance for the three months ended June 30, 2012 included the following:
•

Oil and natural gas sales of approximately $139.6 million, compared to approximately $130.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2011;

•

Average daily production of 31,385 BOE/D, compared to 23,081 BOE/D for the three months ended June 30, 2011; and

•

Adjusted EBITDA (a non-GAAP financial measure) of $113.9 million compared to $100.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2011.

Our financial and operating performance for the six months ended June 30, 2012 included the following:
•

Oil and natural gas sales of approximately $288.6 million, compared to approximately $236.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011;

•

Average daily production of 29,690 BOE/D, compared to 22,070 BOE/D for the six months ended June 30, 2011; and

•

Adjusted EBITDA (a non-GAAP financial measure) of $227.8 million compared to $183.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011.
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Core areas of operations
Our activities are primarily focused in the Wolfberry and deeper horizons of the Permian Basin in West Texas and the Anadarko Granite Wash in the
Texas Panhandle and Western Oklahoma. The oil and liquids-rich Permian Basin and the liquids-rich Anadarko Granite Wash are characterized by multiple
target horizons, extensive production histories, long-lived reserves, high drilling success rates and significant initial production rates. As of June 30, 2012, we
had an interest in 1,291 gross producing wells.
Additionally, as of June 30, 2012, we have accumulated 404,276 net acres. Through December 31, 2011, we had identified over 6,000 gross potential
drilling locations on our existing acreage. We intend to continue to explore and develop this large acreage position to increase our cash flow, production and
reserves through continued vertical and horizontal drilling programs.
Pricing
Our results of operations are heavily influenced by commodity prices. Prices for oil and natural gas can fluctuate widely in response to relatively minor
changes in the global and regional supply of and demand for oil and natural gas, market uncertainty, economic conditions and a variety of additional factors.
Since the inception of our oil and natural gas activities, commodity prices have experienced significant fluctuations, and additional changes in commodity
prices may significantly affect the economic viability of drilling projects, as well as the economic valuation and economic recovery of oil and natural gas
reserves.
The unweighted arithmetic average first-day-of-the-month index prices for the prior 12 months ended June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011 used to value our
reserves were $92.17 per Bbl for oil and $3.01 per MMBtu for natural gas, and $86.60 per Bbl for oil and $4.00 per MMBtu for natural gas, respectively. The
prices used to estimate proved reserves for all periods did not give effect to derivative transactions, were held constant throughout the life of the properties
and have been adjusted for quality, transportation fees, geographical differentials, marketing bonuses or deductions and other factors affecting the price
received at the wellhead. Our reserves are reported in two streams: crude oil and liquids-rich natural gas. The economic value of the natural gas liquids in our
natural gas is included in the wellhead natural gas price.
We have entered into a number of commodity derivatives, which have allowed us to offset a portion of the changes caused by price fluctuations on our
oil and natural gas production as discussed in "—Hedging" below.
Sources of our revenue
Our revenues are derived from the sale of oil and natural gas within the continental United States and do not include the effects of derivatives. For the
three months ended June 30, 2012, our revenues are comprised of sales of approximately 71% oil, 28% natural gas and 1% for transportation and treating. For
the six months ended June 30, 2012, our revenues are comprised of sales of approximately 70% oil, 29% natural gas and 1% for transportation and treating.
Our revenues may vary significantly from period to period as a result of changes in volumes of production sold or changes in commodity prices.
Hedging
Due to the inherent volatility in oil and natural gas prices, we use commodity derivative instruments, such as collars, swaps, puts and basis swaps to
hedge price risk associated with a significant portion of our anticipated oil and natural gas production. By removing a majority of the price volatility
associated with future production, we expect to reduce, but not eliminate, the potential effects of
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variability in cash flow from operations due to fluctuations in commodity prices. We have not elected hedge accounting on these derivatives and, therefore,
the unrealized gains and losses on open positions are reflected currently in earnings. At each period end, we estimate the fair value of our commodity
derivatives using an independent third party valuation and recognize an unrealized gain or loss. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2012, we
recognized unrealized gains on our commodity derivatives of $19.4 million and $15.3 million, respectively, and during the three and six months ended
June 30, 2011, we recognized an unrealized gain of $20.0 million and an unrealized loss of $8.7 million on our commodity derivatives, respectively, based on
market price fluctuations compared to prices in our commodity derivative contracts.
Subsequent to June 30, 2012, we entered into 15 additional derivative contracts to hedge the price risk associated with approximately 8,760,000 MMBtu,
11,160,000 MMBtu and 15,480,000 MMBtu of our natural gas production for the twelve months ending December 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively.
These derivative contracts have associated deferred premiums totaling approximately $4.2 million. See Note N to our unaudited consolidated financial
statements included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for additional information regarding these derivative contracts.
Our hedged positions as of June 30, 2012 are as follows:
Remaining
year 2012

Oil(1)
Total volume hedged with ceiling
price (Bbls)
Weighted average ceiling price ($/
Bbl)

969,000
$

108.81 $

Year
2013

1,368,000
110.55 $

Year
2014

Year
2015

Total

726,000 252,000
129.09 $ 135.00 $

3,315,000
115.96

Total volume hedged with floor price
1,305,000 2,448,000 1,266,000 708,000 5,727,000
(Bbls)
79.90 $
77.19 $
75.26 $ 75.00 $
77.11
Weighted average floor price ($/Bbl) $
Natural Gas(2)
Total volume hedged with ceiling
5,140,000 7,300,000 6,960,000
price (MMBtu)
Weighted average ceiling price(3) ($/
$
5.54 $
6.72 $
7.03 $
MMBtu)
Total volume hedged with floor price
7,300,000 13,900,000 6,960,000
(MMBtu)
Weighted average floor price(3) ($/
$
4.59 $
3.95 $
4.00 $
MMBtu)
Natural Gas basis swaps (MMbtu)
1,440,000 1,200,000
Total volume hedged(4) (MMBtu)
0.31 $
0.33 $
Weighted average price ($/MMBtu) $

—
—$

— 19,400,000
—$

6.51

— 28,160,000
—$

4.13

— 2,640,000
—$
0.32

(1)

The oil derivatives are settled based on the month's average daily NYMEX price of West Texas Intermediate Light Sweet Crude Oil.

(2)

The natural gas derivatives are settled based on NYMEX natural gas futures, the Northern Natural Gas Co. demarcation price or the
Panhandle Eastern Pipe Line spot price of natural gas for the calculation period. The basis swap derivatives are settled based on the
differential between the NYMEX natural gas futures and the West Texas WAHA index gas price.

(3)

The cash settlement price of our basis swaps is calculated on the difference between our natural gas futures contracts that settle on the
NYMEX index and the NYMEX index price at the time of
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settlement. At June 30, 2012, we had 200,000 MMBtu for the remainder of 2012 and 500,000 MMBtu for 2013 in basis swaps that did
not have corresponding volumes hedged with a NYMEX index price. As such, the weighted average price of the basis differential
attributable to these volumes has not been included in the weighted average ceiling and floor prices presented above as these basis
contracts are not expected to settle based on our June 30, 2012 hedge positions.
(4)

Total volume hedged for natural gas basis swaps includes 200,000 MMBtu for the remainder of 2012 and 500,000 MMBtu for 2013 in
basis swaps that did not have corresponding volumes hedged with a NYMEX index price at June 30, 2012.

Results of operations
The following table sets forth information regarding production, average sales prices and average costs per BOE for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2012 and 2011:
Three months ended
June 30,
2012
2011

Production data:
Oil and condensate (MBbl)
Natural gas (MMcf)
Oil equivalents (MBOE)(1)(2)
Average daily production (BOE/d)
% Oil and condensate

1,164
10,152
2,856
31,385
41%

Six months ended
June 30,
2011

2012

808
7,754
2,100
23,081
38%

2,231
19,034
5,404
29,690
41%

1,517
14,866
3,995
22,070
38%

Average sales prices:
Oil and condensate, realized(3) ($/Bbl)
Natural gas, realized(3) ($/Mcf)
Oil equivalents, realized ($/BOE)

$
$
$

85.45
3.95
48.88

$
$
$

98.53
6.60
62.27

$
$
$

91.23
4.47
53.40

$
$
$

94.57
6.26
59.21

Oil and condensate, hedged(4) ($/Bbl)
Natural gas, hedged(4) ($/Mcf)
Oil equivalents, hedged ($/BOE)

$
$
$

85.45
4.85
52.07

$
$
$

93.43
6.93
61.53

$
$
$

90.20
5.31
55.95

$
$
$

90.31
6.63
58.97

$

5.48
2.56
5.05
21.25
34.34

$

4.85
3.76
5.01
20.69
34.31

$

5.67
3.00
5.91
20.77
35.35

$

4.53
3.75
4.95
19.00
32.23

Average costs per BOE:
Lease operating expenses
Production and ad valorem taxes
General and administrative(5)
DD&A
Total

$

$

$

$

(1)

MBbl equivalents ("MBOE") are calculated using a conversion rate of six MMcf per one MBbl.

(2)

The volumes presented are based on actual results and are not calculated using the rounded numbers presented in the table
above.

(3)

Realized crude oil and natural gas prices are the actual prices realized at the wellhead after all adjustments for NGL content,
quality, transportation fees, geographical differentials, marketing bonuses or deductions and other factors affecting the price at
the wellhead.
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(4)

Hedged prices reflect the after effect of our commodity hedging transactions on our average sales prices. Our calculation of
such after effects include realized gains and losses on cash settlements for commodity derivatives, which do not qualify for
hedge accounting. See Note F.4 to our unaudited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for additional information regarding our realized gains and losses on commodity derivatives.

(5)

General and administrative includes non-cash stock-based compensation of $2.6 million and $0.6 million for the three months
ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and $4.8 million and $0.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and
2011, respectively. Excluding stock-based compensation from the above metric results in general and administrative per BOE
of $4.14 and $4.75 for the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and $5.02 and $4.73 for the six months
ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
Three months ended June 30, 2012 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2011
The following table sets forth selected operating data for the three months ended June 30, 2012 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2011:
Three months ended
June 30,
(in thousands)

2012

Revenues
Oil
Natural gas
Natural gas transportation and treating
Total revenues
Costs and expenses
Lease operating expenses
Production and ad valorem taxes
Natural gas transportation and treating
Drilling and production
General and administrative (including non-cash stock-based compensation of $2,588
and $557 for the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively)
Accretion of asset retirement obligations
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Impairment expense
Total costs and expenses
Non-operating income (expense):
Realized and unrealized gain (loss):
Commodity derivative financial instruments, net
Interest rate derivatives, net
Interest expense
Interest and other income
Loss on disposal of assets
Non-operating income, net
Income tax expense
Net income
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2011

$ 99,462 $ 79,600
40,147 51,163
1,015
964
140,624 131,727
15,660
7,318
391
333

10,194
7,897
615
397

14,410
292
60,697
—
99,101

10,522
155
43,439
37
73,256

28,543 18,449
—
(976)
(21,674) (11,736)
15
22
(8)
(18)
6,876
5,741
(17,424) (23,140)
$ 30,975 $ 41,072
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Oil and natural gas revenues. Our oil and natural gas revenues increased by approximately $8.8 million, or 7%, to $139.6 million during the three
months ended June 30, 2012 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2011. Our revenues are a function of oil and natural gas production volumes
sold and average sales prices received for those volumes. Average daily production sold increased by 8,304 BOE/D, or 36%, during the three months ended
June 30, 2012 as compared to the same period in 2011. The total increase in revenue of approximately $8.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2012
as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2011 is attributable to higher oil and natural gas production volumes, which were offset by declining market
prices for oil and natural gas for the three months ended June 30, 2012. Production increased by 356 MBbls for oil and 2,398 MMcf for natural gas for the
three months ended June 30, 2012 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2011. The net dollar effect of the decrease in prices of approximately
$42.1 million (calculated as the change in period-to-period average prices times current quarter production volumes for oil and natural gas) and the net dollar
effect of the increase in production of approximately $50.9 million (calculated as the increase in period-to-period volumes for oil and natural gas times the
prior period average prices) are shown below.

Change in
prices(1)

Effect of changes in price:
Oil
Natural gas
Total revenues due to change in price

$
$

Production
volumes for the
three months ended
6/30/2012(2)

(13.08)
(2.65)

1,164
10,152

Change in
production
volumes(2)

Effect of changes in volumes:
Oil
Natural gas
Total revenues due to change in volumes

356
2,398

Rounding differences
Total change in revenues
(1)

Prices at
6/30/2011(1)

$
$

98.53
6.60

Total net
dollar effect
of change
(in thousands)

$
$
$

(15,225)
(26,903)
(42,128)

Total net
dollar effect
of change
(in thousands)

$
$
$

35,077
15,827
50,904

$
$

70
8,846

Prices shown are realized, unhedged $/Bbl for oil and are realized, unhedged $/Mcf for natural gas.

(2)
Production volumes are presented in MBbls for oil and in MMcf for natural gas.
Lease operating expenses. Lease operating expenses, which include workover expenses, increased to $15.7 million for the three months ended June 30,
2012 from $10.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2011, an increase of approximately 54%. The increase was primarily due to an increase in
drilling activity, which resulted in additional producing wells during the second quarter of 2012 compared to the second quarter of 2011. The increase in well
count also led to increases in routine repairs and maintenance. On a per-BOE basis, lease operating expenses increased in total to $5.48 per BOE for the three
months ended June 30, 2012 from $4.85 per BOE for the three months ended June 30, 2011.
Production and ad valorem taxes. Production and ad valorem taxes decreased to approximately $7.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2012
from $7.9 million for the three months ended
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June 30, 2011, a decrease of $0.6 million. This decrease was primarily due to the decrease in market prices for oil and natural gas, which was offset by a
significant increase in production for the second quarter of 2012 as compared to the same period in 2011. The average realized prices excluding derivatives
for the three months ended June 30, 2012 were $85.45 per Bbl for oil and $3.95 per Mcf for natural gas as compared to $98.53 per Bbl for oil and $6.60 per
Mcf for natural gas for the three months ended June 30, 2011.
General and administrative ("G&A"). G&A expense increased to approximately $14.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2012 from
$10.5 million for the same period in 2011, an increase of $3.9 million, or 37%. Increases in salaries, benefits and bonuses accounted for approximately $2.1
million of the increase due to an increase in the number of employees as we continue to grow our business. Professional fees decreased by approximately
$0.9 million due largely to fees incurred for the Broad Oak acquisition during the second quarter of 2011.
Additionally, stock-based compensation increased by approximately $2.0 million to $2.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2012 as compared
to the same period in 2011 due to the issuance of 776,711 restricted stock awards and 602,948 non-qualified stock options during 2012. The fair value of the
restricted stock awards issued during the first and second quarters of 2012 was calculated based on the value of our stock price on the date of grant in
accordance with the applicable generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America ("GAAP") and is being recognized on a straight-line
basis over the three year requisite service period of the awards. The fair value of our non-qualified restricted stock options was determined using a BlackScholes valuation model in accordance with applicable GAAP accounting and is being recognized on a straight-line basis over the four year requisite service
period of the awards. The issuance of our cash-settled performance unit liability awards in February 2012, which are revalued at the end of each reporting
period using a Monte Carlo simulation, accounted for approximately $0.5 million of the total change for the three months ended June 30, 2012 as compared to
the three months ended June 30, 2011.
On a per-BOE basis, G&A expense increased to $5.05 per BOE during the three months ended June 30, 2012 from $5.01 per BOE for the three months
ended June 30, 2011. Excluding non-cash, stock-based compensation, G&A expense per BOE was $4.14 and $4.75 for the three months ended June 30, 2012
and 2011, respectively.
See Notes B and D to our unaudited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for additional
information regarding our stock and performance based compensation.
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ("DD&A"). DD&A increased to approximately $60.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2012 from
$43.4 million for the same period in 2011, an increase of $17.3 million, or 40%. The following table provides components of our DD&A expense for the three
months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011.
Three months ended
June 30,
(in thousands except for per BOE data)

Depletion of proved oil and natural gas properties
Depreciation of pipeline assets
Depreciation of other property and equipment
Total DD&A
Depletion of proved oil and natural gas properties per BOE
DD&A per BOE
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2012

$

2011

$

59,111 $
772
814
60,697 $

42,239
595
605
43,439

$
$

20.70 $
21.25 $

20.11
20.69
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The increase in depletion of proved oil and natural gas properties of $16.9 million and the increase in the depletion rate of $0.59 per BOE resulted
primarily from (i) increased net book value on new reserves added, (ii) higher total production levels, and (iii) increased capitalized costs for new wells
completed in 2012.
Impairment expense. Impairment expense decreased to zero for the three months ended June 30, 2012 from $0.04 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2011. Impairment expense incurred in the first three months of 2011 was to reflect our materials and supplies inventory at the lower of cost or market
value calculated as of June 30, 2011. It was determined at June 30, 2012 that a lower of cost or market adjustment was not needed for materials and supplies.
We evaluate the impairment of our oil and natural gas properties on a quarterly basis according to the full cost method prescribed by the SEC. If the
carrying amount exceeds the calculated full cost ceiling, we reduce the carrying amount of the oil and natural gas properties to the calculated full cost ceiling
amount, which is determined to be the estimated fair value. At June 30, 2012 and 2011, it was determined that our oil and natural gas properties were not
impaired.
Commodity derivative financial instruments. Due to the inherent volatility in oil and natural gas prices, we use commodity derivative instruments,
including puts, swaps, collars and basis swaps to hedge price risk associated with a significant portion of our anticipated oil and natural gas production. At
each period end, we estimate the fair value of our commodity derivatives using a valuation prepared by an independent third party and recognize an unrealized
gain or loss. We have not elected hedge accounting on these derivatives, and therefore, the unrealized gains and losses on open positions are reflected in
current earnings. For the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, our commodity derivatives resulted in a realized gain of $9.1 million and a realized loss
of $1.6 million, respectively. For the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, our commodity derivatives resulted in unrealized gains of $19.4 million and
$20.0 million, respectively. At June 30, 2012, we had 18 commodity derivatives contracts with associated deferred premiums totaling approximately
$27.5 million. The estimated fair value of our total deferred premiums was approximately $23.6 million at June 30, 2012. The fair market value of these
premiums is deducted from our unrealized gain or loss at each period end.
Interest expense and realized and unrealized gains and losses on interest rate swaps. Interest expense increased to approximately $21.7 million for the
three months ended June 30, 2012 from $11.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2011, largely due to the issuance of (i) $200.0 million in 91/2%
senior unsecured notes due 2019 in October of 2011 in addition to the previously outstanding $350.0 million 91/2% senior unsecured notes due in 2019
(collectively, the "2019 senior unsecured notes"), and (ii) $500.0 million in 73/8% senior unsecured notes due 2022 ("2022 senior unsecured notes") in April
of 2012 as shown in the table below.

(in thousands except for percentages)

Senior secured credit facility
2019 senior unsecured notes
2022 senior unsecured notes
Broad Oak credit facility(1)

Three months ended June 30, 2012
Weighted
Weighted
average
average
principal
interest rate(2)

$

270,741
550,000
500,000
—

0.17%
2.37%
1.29%
—

Three months ended June 30, 2011
Weighted
Weighted
average
average
principal
interest rate(2)

$

43,182
350,000
—
64,541

0.55%
2.37%
—
2.87%

(1)

The Broad Oak credit facility was paid-in-full and terminated on July 1, 2011 in connection with the Broad Oak acquisition.

(2)

Interest rates presented are annual rates which have been prorated to reflect the portion of the year for which they have been incurred.
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We have entered into certain variable-to-fixed interest rate swaps that hedge our exposure to interest rate variations on our variable interest rate debt. At
June 30, 2012, we had interest rate swaps outstanding for a notional amount of $100.0 million with fixed pay rates ranging from 1.11% to 3.00% and terms
expiring through September 2013. At June 30, 2011, we had interest rate swaps outstanding for a notional amount of $260.0 million with fixed pay rates
ranging from 1.11% to 3.41% and terms expiring through September 2013. We realized losses on interest rate swaps of $0.8 million and $1.3 million for the
three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Additionally, we recorded unrealized gains on interest rate swaps of $0.8 million and $0.3 million
for the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. At June 30, 2012, the estimated fair value of our interest rate swaps was in a net liability
position of $0.4 million compared to $2.0 million at December 31, 2011.
Income tax expense. We recorded a deferred income tax expense of $17.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2012, compared to a deferred
income tax expense of $23.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2011. The estimated annual effective tax rate was 36% for each of the three months
ended June 30, 2012 and 2011. Our effective tax rate is based on our estimated annual permanent tax differences and estimated annual pre-tax book income.
Our estimates involve assumptions we believe to be reasonable at the time of the estimation.
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Six months ended June 30, 2012 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2011
The following table sets forth selected operating data for the six months ended June 30, 2012 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2011:
Six months ended
June 30,
(in thousands)

2012

Revenues
Oil
Natural gas
Natural gas transportation and treating
Total revenues
Costs and expenses
Lease operating expenses
Production and ad valorem taxes
Natural gas transportation and treating
Drilling and production
General and administrative (including non-cash stock-based compensation of $4,835
and $876 for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively)
Accretion of asset retirement obligations
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Impairment expense
Total costs and expenses
Non-operating income (expense):
Realized and unrealized gain (loss):
Commodity derivative financial instruments, net
Interest rate derivatives, net
Interest expense
Interest and other income
Write-off of deferred loan costs
Loss on disposal of assets
Non-operating expense, net
Income tax expense
Net income

2011

$203,529 $143,464
85,031 93,068
2,412
2,306
290,972 238,838
30,644
16,237
691
1,771

18,112
14,999
1,167
693

31,941 19,770
556
304
112,220 75,917
—
243
194,060 131,205

29,137
(9,585)
(323) (1,094)
(36,358) (22,252)
31
58
—
(3,246)
(8)
(35)
(7,521) (36,154)
(32,181) (25,737)
$ 57,210 $ 45,742

Oil and natural gas revenues. Our oil and natural gas revenues increased by approximately $52.0 million, or 22%, to $288.6 million during the six
months ended June 30, 2012 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2011. Our revenues are a function of oil and natural gas production volumes sold
and average sales prices received for those volumes. Average daily production sold increased by 7,620 BOE/D during the six months ended June 30, 2012 as
compared to the same period in 2011. The total increase in revenue of approximately $52.0 million is largely attributable to higher oil and natural gas
production volumes for the six months ended June 30, 2012 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2011. Production increased by 714 MBbls for oil
and 4,168 MMcf for natural gas for the six months ended June 30, 2012 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2011. The net dollar effect of the
decrease in prices of approximately $41.5 million (calculated as the change in period-to-period average prices times current year-to-date production volumes
for oil and natural gas) and the net dollar effect of the increase in production of approximately $93.6 million (calculated as the increase in
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period-to-period volumes for oil and natural gas times the prior period average prices) are shown below.

Change in
prices(1)

Effect of changes in price:
Oil
Natural gas
Total revenues due to change in price

$
$

Production
volumes for the six
months ended
6/30/2012(2)

(3.34)
(1.79)

2,231
19,034

Change in
production
volumes(2)

Effect of changes in volumes:
Oil
Natural gas
Total revenues due to change in volumes
Rounding differences
Total change in revenues
(1)

714
4,168

Prices at
6/30/2011(1)

$
$

94.57
6.26

Total net
dollar effect
of change
(in thousands)

$
$
$

(7,452)
(34,071)
(41,523)

Total net
dollar effect
of change
(in thousands)

$
$
$
$
$

67,523
26,092
93,615
(64)
52,028

Prices shown are realized, unhedged $/Bbl for oil and are realized, unhedged $/Mcf for natural gas.

(2)
Production volumes are presented in MBbls for oil and in MMcf for natural gas.
Lease operating expenses. Lease operating expenses, which include workover expenses, increased to $30.6 million for the six months ended June 30,
2012 from $18.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011, an increase of approximately 69%. The increase was primarily due to an increase in drilling
activity, which resulted in additional producing wells during the first six months of 2012 compared to the same period in 2011. The increase in well count also
led to increases in routine repairs and maintenance. Additionally, a portion of the increase is due to approximately $1.1 million in additional workover
expenses incurred during the first six months of 2012 as compared to the same period in 2011 resulting largely from costs incurred for the workover of one
well. This workover is not indicative of costs typically incurred for workovers and was fully completed in the first quarter of 2012.
On a per-BOE basis, lease operating expenses increased in total to $5.67 per BOE for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from $4.53 per BOE for the
six months ended June 30, 2011. Excluding the one-time workover expense noted above, lease operating expense per BOE at June 30, 2012 was $5.44 per
BOE.
Production and ad valorem taxes. Production and ad valorem taxes increased to approximately $16.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012
from $15.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011, an increase of $1.2 million. This increase was primarily due to the significant increase in
production of approximately 1,409 MBOE, or 35%, for the first six months of 2012 as compared to the same period in 2011.
Drilling and production. Drilling and production costs increased to approximately $1.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from
$0.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011 as a result of increased maintenance costs related to the increase in drilling during the first six months of
2012 as compared to the same period in 2011.
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General and administrative ("G&A"). G&A expense increased to approximately $31.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from
$19.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011, an increase of $12.1 million, or 61%. Increases in salaries, benefits and bonuses accounted for
approximately $6.3 million of the increase due to the payment of performance bonuses totaling $2.0 million in February 2012 as well as an increase in the
number of employees as we continue to grow our business.
Additionally, stock-based compensation increased by approximately $4.0 million to $4.8 million for the first six months of 2012 as compared to the same
period in 2011 due to the issuance of 776,711 restricted stock awards and 602,948 non-qualified stock options during 2012. The fair value of the restricted
stock awards issued during the first and second quarters of 2012 was calculated based on the value of our stock price on the date of grant in accordance with
GAAP and is being recognized on a straight-line basis over the three year requisite service period of the awards. The fair value of our non-qualified restricted
stock options was determined using a Black-Scholes valuation model in accordance with applicable GAAP accounting and is being recognized on a straightline basis over the four year requisite service period of the awards. The issuance of our cash-settled performance unit liability awards in February 2012, which
are revalued at the end of each reporting period using a Monte Carlo simulation, accounted for approximately $1.0 million of the total change for the six
months ended June 30, 2012 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2011.
On a per-BOE basis, G&A expense increased to $5.91 per BOE during the six months ended June 30, 2012 from $4.95 per BOE for the six months
ended June 30, 2011. Excluding non-cash, stock-based compensation, G&A expense per BOE was $5.02 and $4.73 for the six months ended June 30, 2012
and 2011, respectively.
See Notes B and D to our unaudited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for additional
information regarding our stock and performance based compensation.
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ("DD&A"). DD&A increased to approximately $112.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from
$75.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011, an increase of $36.3 million, or 48%. The following table provides components of our DD&A expense
for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011.
Six months ended
June 30,
(in thousands except for per BOE data)

2012

$

Depletion of proved oil and natural gas properties
Depreciation of pipeline assets
Depreciation of other property and equipment
Total DD&A

$

2011

109,178 $ 73,670
1,505
1,151
1,537
1,096
112,220 $ 75,917

$
20.20 $ 18.44
Depletion of proved oil and natural gas properties per BOE
$
20.77 $ 19.00
DD&A per BOE
The increase in depletion of proved oil and natural gas properties of $35.5 million and the increase in the depletion rate of $1.76 per BOE resulted
primarily from (i) increased net book value on new reserves added, (ii) higher total production levels and (iii) increased capitalized costs for new wells
completed in 2012.
Impairment expense. Impairment expense decreased to zero for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from $0.2 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2011. Impairment expense incurred in the first six months of 2011 was to reflect our materials and supplies inventory at the lower of cost or
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market value calculated as of June 30, 2011. It was determined at June 30, 2012 that a lower of cost or market value adjustment was not needed for materials
and supplies.
We evaluate the impairment of our oil and natural gas properties on a quarterly basis according to the full cost method prescribed by the SEC. If the
carrying amount exceeds the calculated full cost ceiling, we reduce the carrying amount of the oil and natural gas properties to the calculated full cost ceiling
amount, which is determined to be the estimated fair value. At June 30, 2012 and 2011, it was determined that our oil and natural gas properties were not
impaired.
Commodity derivative financial instruments. Due to the inherent volatility in oil and natural gas prices, we use commodity derivative instruments,
including puts, swaps, collars and basis swaps to hedge price risk associated with a significant portion of our anticipated oil and natural gas production. At
each period end, we estimate the fair value of our commodity derivatives using a valuation prepared by an independent third party and recognize an unrealized
gain or loss. We have not elected hedge accounting on these derivatives, and therefore, the unrealized gains and losses on open positions are reflected in
current earnings. For the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, our commodity derivatives resulted in a realized gain of $13.8 million and a realized loss
of $0.9 million, respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, our commodity derivatives resulted in an unrealized gain of $15.3 million and
an unrealized loss of $8.7 million, respectively. At June 30, 2012, we had 18 commodity derivatives contracts with associated deferred premiums totaling
approximately $27.5 million. The estimated fair value of our total deferred premiums was approximately $23.6 million at June 30, 2012. The fair market
value of these premiums is deducted from our unrealized gain or loss at each period end.
Interest expense and realized and unrealized gains and losses on interest rate swaps. Interest expense increased to approximately $36.4 million for the
six months ended June 30, 2012 from $22.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011, largely due to the issuance of our 2019 senior unsecured notes in
January and October of 2011 as well as the issuance of our 2022 senior unsecured notes in April of 2012 as shown in the table below.

(in thousands except for percentages)

Senior secured credit facility
2019 senior unsecured notes
2022 senior unsecured notes
Term loan(1)
Broad Oak credit facility(2)

Six months ended June 30, 2012
Weighted
Weighted
average
average
principal
interest rate(3)

$

190,085
550,000
500,000
—
—

0.72%
4.73%
1.29%
—
—

Six months ended June 30, 2011
Weighted
Weighted
average
average
principal
interest rate(3)

$

68,056
350,000
—
100,000
122,904

0.75%
4.19%
—
0.31%
3.07%

(1)

The term loan was entered into on July 7, 2010 and was paid-in-full and terminated on January 20, 2011.

(2)

The Broad Oak credit facility was paid-in-full and terminated on July 1, 2011 in connection with the Broad Oak acquisition.

(3)
Interest rates presented are annual rates which have been prorated to reflect the portion of the year for which they have been incurred.
We have entered into certain variable-to-fixed interest rate swaps that hedge our exposure to interest rate variations on our variable interest rate debt. At
June 30, 2012, we had interest rate swaps outstanding for a notional amount of $100.0 million with fixed pay rates ranging from 1.11% to 3.00% and terms
expiring through September 2013. At June 30, 2011, we had interest rate swaps outstanding for a notional amount of $260.0 million with fixed pay rates
ranging from 1.11% to 3.41% and terms expiring through September 2013. We realized losses on interest rate swaps of $1.9 million and
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$2.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Additionally, we recorded unrealized gains on interest rate swaps of $1.6 million
and $1.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011, respectively. At June 30, 2012, the estimated fair value of our interest rate swaps
was in a net liability position of $0.4 million compared to $2.0 million at December 31, 2011.
Income tax expense. We recorded a deferred income tax expense of $32.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012, compared to a deferred
income tax expense of $25.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011. The estimated annual effective tax rate was 36% for each of the six months
ended June 30, 2012 and 2011. Our effective tax rate is based on our estimated annual permanent tax differences and estimated annual pre-tax book income.
Our estimates involve assumptions we believe to be reasonable at the time of the estimation.
Liquidity and capital resources
Since our IPO, our primary sources of liquidity have been cash flows from operations, borrowings under our senior secured credit facility and proceeds
from our senior unsecured notes. Our primary use of capital has been for the exploration, development and acquisition of oil and natural gas properties. As we
pursue reserves and production growth, we continually consider which capital resources, including equity and debt financings, are available to meet our future
financial obligations, planned capital expenditure activities and liquidity requirements. Our future ability to grow proved reserves and production will be
highly dependent on the capital resources available to us, which resources we cannot assure you will be available to us or their terms. We believe that we have
sufficient liquidity available to us from cash flows from operations and under our senior secured credit facility as well as the remaining proceeds from the
April 2012 offering of the 2022 senior unsecured notes for our planned exploration and development activities. In addition, our hedge positions currently
provide relative certainty on a majority of our cash flows from operations through 2012 even with the general decline in the prices of natural gas.
At June 30, 2012, we had no debt outstanding and approximately $0.03 million of outstanding letters of credit under our senior secured credit facility.
Additionally, we had $1.05 billion of outstanding senior unsecured notes, excluding the remaining premium of $1.9 million received on the October 2011
offering of our 2019 senior unsecured notes. We had approximately $785.0 million available for borrowings under our senior secured credit facility and
$146.5 million in cash on hand for total available liquidity of approximately $931.5 million at June 30, 2012. We believe such availability as well as cash
flows from operations provide us with the ability to implement our planned exploration and development activities.
As of August 7, 2012, we had no outstanding debt under our senior secured credit facility, approximately $785.0 million available for borrowings and
approximately $47.8 million in cash on hand.
We expect that, in the future, our commodity derivative positions will help us stabilize a portion of our expected cash flows from operations despite
potential declines in the price of oil and natural gas. Please see "Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" below.
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Cash flows
Our cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:
Six months ended
June 30,
(in thousands)

2012

$

Net cash provided by operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash

$

2011

199,790 $
(485,831)
404,524
118,483 $

162,058
(359,449)
188,208
(9,183)

Cash flows provided by operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities was $199.8 million and $162.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The
increase of $37.7 million was largely due to increases in revenue due to increased production.
Our operating cash flows are sensitive to a number of variables, the most significant of which are production levels and the volatility of oil and natural
gas prices. Regional and worldwide economic activity, weather, infrastructure, capacity to reach markets, costs of operations and other variable factors
significantly impact the prices of these commodities. These factors are not within our control and are difficult to predict. For additional information on the
impact of changing prices on our financial position, see "Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk."
Cash flows used in investing activities
We used cash flows in investing activities of approximately $485.8 million and $359.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, which is an increase of $126.4 million. A portion of our capital expenditures for the six months ended June 30, 2012 reflects expenditures which
were accrued for at December 31, 2011 as part of our 2011 capital budget, but due to the timing of when billings were received, were paid during the first
quarter of 2012. Additionally, a significant portion of the increase was due to increasing our drilling efforts in our Permian Basin and Anadarko Granite Wash
areas as we continue to explore and develop our identified potential drilling locations.
Our cash used in investing activities for capital expenditures for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 is summarized in the table below.
Six months ended
June 30,
(in thousands)

2012

Capital expenditures:
Oil and natural gas properties
Pipeline and gathering assets
Other fixed assets
Proceeds from other asset disposals
Net cash used in investing activities

$

$

(473,846) $
(7,031)
(4,988)
34
(485,831) $

2011

(348,523)
(6,344)
(4,602)
20
(359,449)

Capital expenditure budget
Our board of directors approved a budget of approximately $900 million for calendar year 2012, excluding acquisitions. We do not have a specific
acquisition budget since the timing and size of acquisitions cannot be accurately forecasted.
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The amount, timing and allocation of capital expenditures are largely discretionary and within management's control. If oil and natural gas prices decline
to levels below our acceptable levels, or costs increase to levels above our acceptable levels, we may choose to defer a portion of our budgeted capital
expenditures until later periods in order to achieve the desired balance between sources and uses of liquidity and prioritize capital projects that we believe
have the highest expected returns and potential to generate near-term cash flow. We may also increase our capital expenditures significantly to take advantage
of opportunities we consider to be attractive. We consistently monitor and adjust our projected capital expenditures in response to success or lack of success in
drilling activities, changes in prices, availability of financing, drilling and acquisition costs, industry conditions, the timing of regulatory approvals, the
availability of rigs, contractual obligations, internally generated cash flow and other factors both within and outside our control.
Cash flows provided by financing activities
We had cash flows provided by financing activities of $404.5 million and $188.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
The increase in net cash provided by financing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2012 is the result of issuing our 2022 senior unsecured notes
in an aggregate principal amount of $500 million in April 2012, which were offset by payments for loan costs totaling $10.5 million, as well as the net effect
of payments and borrowings on our senior secured credit facility.
Net cash provided by financing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2011 was largely the result of our first issuance of 2019 senior unsecured
notes in an aggregate principal amount of $350.0 million in January 2011 as well as net borrowings and payments on the former Broad Oak credit facility and
our senior secured credit facility and the payment-in-full and termination of our $100.0 million term loan. Additionally, we incurred $10.6 million in loan
costs for the six months ended June 30, 2011.
Debt
At June 30, 2012, we were a party only to our senior secured credit facility and the indentures governing our 2019 and 2022 senior unsecured notes. The
Broad Oak credit facility was terminated on July 1, 2011 in connection with the Broad Oak acquisition. Our term loan facility was paid in full and retired in
connection with the closing of the January 2011 offering of our 2019 senior unsecured notes.
Senior secured credit facility. Laredo Petroleum, Inc. is the borrower under our senior secured credit facility, which had a capacity of up to $2.0 billion
with a borrowing base of $785.0 million and no borrowings outstanding at June 30, 2012. Additionally, our senior secured credit facility provides for the
issuance of letters of credit, limited in the aggregate to the lesser of $20.0 million and the total availability under the facility. At June 30, 2012, we had one
letter of credit outstanding totaling approximately $0.03 million under our senior secured credit facility. Our senior secured credit facility will mature on
July 1, 2016.
We have a choice of borrowing at an Adjusted Base Rate or in Eurodollars. Adjusted Base Rate loans bear interest at the Adjusted Base Rate plus an
applicable margin between 0.75% and 1.75%, and Eurodollar loans bear interest at the adjusted London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") plus an applicable
margin between 1.75% and 2.75%. At June 30, 2012, the applicable margin rates were 0.75% for the Adjusted Base Rate advances and 1.75% for the
Eurodollar advances. We had no outstanding borrowings under our senior secured credit facility at June 30, 2012. We are also required to pay an annual
commitment fee on the unused portion of the bank's commitment of 0.5%.
Our senior secured credit facility is secured by a first priority lien on our assets (including the stock of Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc.'s wholly-owned
subsidiary, Laredo Petroleum, Inc.), including
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oil and natural gas properties constituting at least 80% of the present value of our proved reserves owned now or in the future. Our senior secured credit
facility is subject to certain financial and non-financial ratios on a consolidated basis, which we were in compliance with at June 30, 2012.
We entered into the third amendment to our senior secured credit facility on April 24, 2012, which allowed for the issuance of additional senior
unsecured notes in the aggregate amount of $500.0 million. On April 27, 2012, we entered into the fourth amendment to our senior secured credit facility,
which increased the total potential capacity up to $2.0 billion. In addition, the lenders approved an increase in the borrowing base to $910.0 million, which
was reduced by $125.0 million to $785.0 million in the fourth amendment as a result of the issuance of the $500.0 million 2022 senior unsecured notes.
Refer to Note C of our audited consolidated financial statements included in the 2011 Annual Report and Note C of our unaudited consolidated financial
statements included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for further discussion of our senior secured credit facility.
Senior unsecured notes. On January 20, 2011 and October 19, 2011, Laredo Petroleum, Inc. completed the offerings of $350 million principal amount
and $200 million principal amount, respectively, of 91/2% senior unsecured notes due 2019. The 2019 senior unsecured notes will mature on February 15,
2019 and bear an interest rate of 91/2% per annum, payable semi-annually, in cash in arrears on February 15 and August 15 of each year. Our 2019 senior
unsecured notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, on a senior unsecured basis by Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc. and its
subsidiaries (other than Laredo Petroleum, Inc.) (collectively, the "guarantors"). Our 2019 senior unsecured notes were issued under and are governed by an
indenture dated January 20, 2011, among Laredo Petroleum, Inc., Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee, and the guarantors. The indenture
contains customary terms, events of default and covenants relating to, among other things, the incurrence of debt, the payment of dividends or similar
restricted payments, entering into transactions with affiliates and limitations on asset sales. Indebtedness under our 2019 senior unsecured notes may be
accelerated in certain circumstances upon an event of default as set forth in the indenture. Refer to Note C of our audited consolidated financial statements
included in the 2011 Annual Report for further discussion of our 2019 senior unsecured notes.
On April 27, 2012, Laredo Petroleum, Inc. completed an offering of $500 million aggregate principal amount of 73/8% senior unsecured notes due 2022.
The 2022 senior unsecured notes will mature on May 1, 2022 and bear an interest rate of 73/8% per annum, payable semi-annually, in cash in arrears on
May 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing November 1, 2012. The 2022 senior unsecured notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and
severally, on a senior unsecured basis by Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc. and the guarantors. Our 2022 senior unsecured notes were issued under and are
governed by an indenture and supplement thereto, each dated April 27, 2012 (collectively, the "2012 indenture"), among Laredo Petroleum, Inc., Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, as trustee, and the guarantors. The 2012 indenture contains customary terms, events of default and covenants relating to, among
other things, the incurrence of debt, the payment of dividends or similar restricted payments, entering into transactions with affiliates and limitations on asset
sales. Indebtedness under our 2022 senior unsecured notes may be accelerated in certain circumstances upon an event of default as set forth in the 2012
indenture. The net proceeds from the 2022 senior unsecured notes were used (i) to pay in full $280.0 million outstanding under our senior secured credit
facility, and (ii) for general working capital purposes. Refer to Note C to our unaudited consolidated financial statements presented elsewhere in this Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for additional information regarding the 2022 senior unsecured notes. As of August 7, 2012, we had a total of $1.05 billion of senior
unsecured notes outstanding.
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Obligations and commitments
As of June 30, 2012, our contractual obligations included our senior secured credit facility, our 2019 senior unsecured notes, our 2022 senior unsecured
notes, drilling rig commitments, derivative financial instruments, asset retirement obligations and office and equipment leases. From December 31, 2011 to
June 30, 2012, the material changes in our contractual obligations included (i) a decrease of $85.0 million due to payments made on our senior secured credit
facility, (ii) a decrease of $26.1 million on our principal and interest obligation for the 2019 senior unsecured notes as a semi-annual interest payment was
made in February 2012, as well as an increase of $868.8 million for the total principal and interest obligation related to the issuance of our $500 million 2022
senior unsecured notes, (iii) an increase of $26.2 million for short-term drilling rig commitments (on contracts other than those on a well-by-well basis) as we
continue to pursue our drilling program, (iv) an addition of approximately $6.2 million for the estimated total liability payable for our performance unit
awards as of June 30, 2012, which will be payable in December 2014 and (v) an increase of $2.8 million in our total asset retirement obligation due to an
increase in the drilling and addition of new wells with associated asset retirement costs.
Refer to Notes B, C and I to our unaudited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for additional
discussion of our asset retirement obligations, performance unit awards, long-term debt and drilling contract commitments.
Non-GAAP financial measures
The non-GAAP financial measure of Adjusted EBITDA, as defined by us, may not be comparable to similarly titled measures used by other companies.
Therefore, these non-GAAP measures should be considered in conjunction with income from continuing operations and other performance measures prepared
in accordance with GAAP, such as operating income or cash flow from operating activities. Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered in isolation or as a
substitute for GAAP measures, such as net income, operating income or any other GAAP measure of liquidity or financial performance.
Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure that we define as net income or loss plus adjustments for interest expense, depreciation, depletion
and amortization, impairment of long-lived assets, write-off of deferred loan costs and other, gains or losses on sale of assets, unrealized gains or losses on
derivative financial instruments, realized losses on interest rate swaps, realized gains or losses on canceled derivative financial instruments, non-cash stockbased compensation and income tax expense or benefit. Adjusted EBITDA provides no information regarding a company's capital structure, borrowings,
interest costs, capital expenditures, working capital movement or tax position. Adjusted EBITDA does not represent funds available for discretionary use,
because those funds are required for debt service, capital expenditures and working capital, income taxes, franchise taxes and other commitments and
obligations. However, our management team believes Adjusted EBITDA is useful to an investor in evaluating our operating performance because this
measure:
•

is widely used by investors in the oil and natural gas industry to measure a company's operating performance without regard to items excluded
from the calculation of such term, which can vary substantially from company to company depending upon accounting methods and book value
of assets, capital structure and the method by which assets were acquired, among other factors;

•

helps investors to more meaningfully evaluate and compare the results of our operations from period to period by removing the effect of our
capital structure from our operating structure; and
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•

is used by our management team for various purposes, including as a measure of operating performance, in presentations to our board of
directors, as a basis for strategic planning and forecasting.

There are significant limitations to the use of Adjusted EBITDA as a measure of performance, including the inability to analyze the effect of certain
recurring and non-recurring items that materially affect our net income or loss, the lack of comparability of results of operations to different companies and
the different methods of calculating Adjusted EBITDA reported by different companies and our measurements of Adjusted EBITDA for financial reporting as
compared to compliance under our debt agreements differ.
The following presents a reconciliation of net income to Adjusted EBITDA:
For the three months
ended June 30,
(in thousands)

2012

Net income
Plus:
Interest expense
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Impairment of long-lived assets
Write-off of deferred loan costs
Loss on disposal of assets
Unrealized (gains) losses on derivative financial instruments
Realized losses on interest rate derivatives
Non-cash stock-based compensation
Income tax expense
Adjusted EBITDA

$

30,975 $

2011

41,072 $

For the six months
ended June 30,
2012

57,210 $

2011

45,742

21,674
11,736
36,358
22,252
60,697
43,439
112,220
75,917
—
37
—
243
—
—
—
3,246
8
18
8
35
(20,263)
(20,312)
(16,929)
7,192
835
1,255
1,938
2,556
2,588
557
4,835
876
17,424
23,140
32,181
25,737
$ 113,938 $ 100,942 $ 227,821 $ 183,796

Critical accounting policies and estimates
The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our unaudited consolidated financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of our financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Certain accounting policies involve
judgments and uncertainties to such an extent that there is reasonable likelihood that materially different amounts could have been reported under different
conditions, or if different assumptions had been used. We evaluate our estimates and assumptions on a regular basis. We base our estimates on historical
experience and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates
and assumptions used in preparation of our unaudited consolidated financial statements. We believe these accounting policies reflect our more significant
estimates and assumptions used in preparation of our consolidated financial statements.
In management's opinion, the more significant reporting areas impacted by our judgments and estimates are the choice of accounting method for oil and
natural gas activities, estimation of oil and natural gas reserve quantities and standardized measure of future net revenues, revenue recognition, impairment of
oil and natural gas properties, asset retirement obligations, valuation of derivative financial instruments, valuation of stock-based compensation and
performance unit compensation, and
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estimation of income taxes. Management's judgments and estimates in these areas are based on information available from both internal and external sources,
including engineers, geologists and historical experience in similar matters. Actual results could differ from the estimates, as additional information becomes
known.
There have been no material changes in our critical accounting policies and procedures during the six months ended June 30, 2012; however, we have
implemented additional critical accounting policies and procedures related to the 2012 issuances of our stock options and performance unit awards as
discussed below. For our other critical accounting policies and procedures below, please see our disclosure of critical accounting policies in "Item 7.
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" of the 2011 Annual Report.
Stock-based compensation. Under the modified prospective accounting approach, we measure stock-based compensation expense at the grant date
based on the fair value of an award and recognize the compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the service period, which is usually the vesting
period. The fair value of the awards is based on the value of our common stock on the date of grant. The determination of the fair value of an award requires
significant estimates and subjective judgments regarding, among other things, the appropriate option pricing model, the expected life of the award and
forfeiture rate assumptions. Beginning in the first quarter of 2012, we utilized the Black-Scholes option pricing model to measure the fair value of stock
options granted under our 2011 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan. As there are inherent uncertainties related to these factors and our judgment in applying them
to the fair value determinations, there is risk that the recorded stock compensation may not accurately reflect the amount ultimately earned by the employee.
Refer to Note D of our unaudited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for additional information
regarding our stock-based compensation.
Performance unit compensation. For performance unit awards issued to management in 2012, we utilized a Monte Carlo simulation prepared by an
independent third party to determine the fair value of the awards at the date of grant and to re-measure the fair value at the end of each reporting period until
settlement in accordance with GAAP. Due to the relatively short trading history for our stock, the volatility criteria utilized in the Monte Carlo simulation is
based on the volatilities of a group of peer companies that have been determined to be most representative of our expected volatility. The performance unit
awards are classified as liability awards as they have a combination of performance and service criteria and will be settled in cash at the end of the requisite
service period based on the achievement of certain performance criteria. The liability and related compensation expense for each period for these awards is
recognized by dividing the fair value of the total liability by the requisite service period and recording the pro rata share for the period for which service has
already been provided. Compensation expense for the performance units is included in "General and administrative" expense in our consolidated statements of
operations with the corresponding liability recorded in the "Other long-term liabilities" section of our consolidated balance sheet. As there are inherent
uncertainties related to the factors and our judgment in applying them to the fair value determinations, there is risk that the recorded performance unit
compensation may not accurately reflect the amount ultimately earned by the member of management.
See Note B to our unaudited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for a discussion of additional
accounting policies and estimates made by management.
Recent accounting pronouncements
In December 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2011-11, Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities, which requires
disclosure of both gross information and net information about derivative instruments and transactions eligible for offset in the statement of
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financial position and instruments and transactions subject to an agreement similar to master netting arrangements. This information will enable users of an
entity's financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements on an entity's financial position, including the effect or potential
effect of rights of setoff associated with certain financial instruments and derivative instruments within the scope of the update.
The update is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, and interim periods within those annual periods and is to be applied
retrospectively for all comparative periods presented. We do not expect the adoption of this ASU to have a material effect on our consolidated financial
statements.
Off-balance sheet arrangements
Currently, we do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements other than operating leases, which are included in "—Obligations and commitments."
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Item 3.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The primary objective of the following information is to provide forward-looking quantitative and qualitative information about our potential exposure to
market risk. The term "market risk" refers to the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in oil and natural gas prices and interest rates. The disclosures are
not meant to be precise indicators of expected future losses, but rather indicators of how we view and manage our ongoing market risk exposures. All of our
market risk sensitive instruments were entered into for hedging purposes, rather than for speculative trading.
Commodity price exposure. For a discussion of how we use financial commodity put, collar, swap and basis swap contracts to mitigate some of the
potential negative impact on our cash flow caused by changes in oil and natural gas prices, see "Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations—Hedging." The key terms to all our oil and natural gas derivative financial instruments as of June 30, 2012 are
presented in Note F to our unaudited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
Interest rate risk.
secured credit facility.

Our senior secured credit facility bears interest at a floating rate. At June 30, 2012, we had no indebtedness outstanding on our senior

Through interest rate derivative contracts, we have attempted to mitigate our exposure to changes in interest rates. We have entered into various fixed
interest rate swaps and a cap agreement which hedge our exposure to interest rate variations on our senior secured credit facility. At June 30, 2012, we had
one interest rate swap and one interest rate cap outstanding for a notional amount of $100.0 million with fixed pay rates ranging from 1.11% to 3.00% and
terms expiring in September 2013.
Counterparty and customer credit risk. Our principal exposures to credit risk are through receivables resulting from derivatives financial contracts
(approximately $33.4 million at June 30, 2012), joint interest receivables (approximately $31.1 million at June 30, 2012) and the receivables from the sale of
our oil and natural gas production (approximately $38.9 million at June 30, 2012), which we market to energy marketing companies and refineries.
We are subject to credit risk due to the concentration of our oil and natural gas receivables with several significant customers. We do not require our
customers to post collateral, and the inability of our significant customers to meet their obligations to us or their insolvency or liquidation may adversely
affect our financial results.
We have entered into International Swap Dealers Association Master Agreements ("ISDA Agreements") with each of our derivative counterparties, who
are each lenders in our senior secured credit facility. The terms of the ISDA Agreements provide us and the counterparties with rights of set off upon the
occurrence of defined acts of default by either us or a counterparty to a derivative, whereby the party not in default may set off all derivative liabilities owed
to the defaulting party against all derivative asset receivables from the defaulting party.
Refer to Note I of our audited consolidated financial statements included in the 2011 Annual Report for additional disclosures regarding credit risk.
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Item 4.

Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures. As of the end of the period covered by this report, an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design
and operation of Laredo's disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
"Exchange Act")) was performed under the supervision and with the participation of Laredo's management, including our principal executive officer and
principal financial officer. Based on that evaluation, these officers concluded that Laredo's disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of June 30,
2012, to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed in the reports it files and submits under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to Laredo's management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.
Evaluation of changes in internal control over financial reporting. There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the
quarter ended June 30, 2012 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II
Item 1.

Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we are subject to various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business, including proceedings for which we have
insurance coverage. As of the date hereof, we are not party to any legal proceedings which we currently believe will have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial position, results of operations or liquidity.
Item 1A.

Risk Factors

As of the date of this filing, Laredo and its operations continue to be subject to the risk factors previously disclosed in "Item 1A. Risk Factors" in the
2011 Annual Report and "Item 1A. Risk Factors" in the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2012.
Item 2.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

None.
Item 3.

Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.
Item 4.

Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
Item 5.

Other Information

None.
Item 6.

Exhibits
Exhibit
Number

Description

3.1

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc. (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Laredo's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on
December 22, 2011).

3.2

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 of Laredo's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on December 22,
2011).

4.1

Specimen Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Laredo's Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A (File No. 333-176439) filed on November 14, 2011).

4.2

Indenture, dated as of April 27, 2012, among Laredo Petroleum, Inc., the guarantors party thereto and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of
Laredo's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on April 30, 2012).

4.3

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 27, 2012, among Laredo Petroleum, Inc., the guarantors
party thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 of Laredo's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on April 30, 2012).
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Exhibit
Number

Description

4.4

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of April 27, 2012, among Laredo Petroleum, Inc., the
guarantors party thereto and the initial purchasers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of Laredo's
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on April 30, 2012).

10.1

Third Amendment to Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of April 24, 2012,
among Laredo Petroleum, Inc., Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, the guarantors
signatory thereto and the banks signatory thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Laredo's
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on April 25, 2012).

10.2

Fourth Amendment to Third Amended and Restated Credit Facility, dated as of April 27, 2012, among
Laredo Petroleum, Inc., Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, the guarantors signatory
thereto and the banks signatory thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Laredo's Current
Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on April 30, 2012).

10.3*#

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement.

31.1*

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934.

31.2*

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934.

32.1**

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18. U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS*

XBRL Instance Document.

101.CAL*

XBRL Schema Document.

101.SCH*

XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document.

101.DEF*

XBRL Definition Linkbase Document.

101.LAB*

XBRL Labels Linkbase Document.

101.PRE*

XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document.

*

Filed herewith.

**

Furnished herewith.

#

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

LAREDO PETROLEUM HOLDINGS, INC.
Date: August 9, 2012

By:

/s/ RANDY A. FOUTCH
Randy A. Foutch
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

Date: August 9, 2012

By:

/s/ W. MARK WOMBLE
W. Mark Womble
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial and accounting officer)
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit
Number

Description

3.1

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc. (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Laredo's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on
December 22, 2011).

3.2

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 of Laredo's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on December 22,
2011).

4.1

Specimen Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Laredo's Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A (File No. 333-176439) filed on November 14, 2011).

4.2

Indenture, dated as of April 27, 2012, among Laredo Petroleum, Inc., the guarantors party thereto and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of
Laredo's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on April 30, 2012).

4.3

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 27, 2012, among Laredo Petroleum, Inc., the guarantors
party thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 of Laredo's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on April 30, 2012).

4.4

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of April 27, 2012, among Laredo Petroleum, Inc., the
guarantors party thereto and the initial purchasers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of Laredo's
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on April 30, 2012).

10.1

Third Amendment to Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of April 24, 2012,
among Laredo Petroleum, Inc., Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, the guarantors
signatory thereto and the banks signatory thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Laredo's
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on April 25, 2012).

10.2

Fourth Amendment to Third Amended and Restated Credit Facility, dated as of April 27, 2012, among
Laredo Petroleum, Inc., Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, the guarantors signatory
thereto and the banks signatory thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Laredo's Current
Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-35380) filed on April 30, 2012).

10.3*#

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement.

31.1*

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934.

31.2*

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934.

32.1**

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18. U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS*

XBRL Instance Document.

101.CAL*

XBRL Schema Document.
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101.SCH*

XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document.

101.DEF*

XBRL Definition Linkbase Document.

101.LAB*

XBRL Labels Linkbase Document.

101.PRE*

XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document.

*

Filed herewith.

**

Furnished herewith.

#

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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Exhibit 10.3
RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT
LAREDO PETROLEUM HOLDINGS, INC.
2011 OMNIBUS EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
THIS AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made as of the 16th day of May, 2012, by and between Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc. (the "Company")
and
(the "Grantee").
WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, the Grantee is currently a a member of the Company's Board of Directors; and
WHEREAS, as part of the annual compensation provided to members of the Company's Board of Directors, the Company desires to afford Grantee the
opportunity to acquire, or enlarge, Grantee's stock ownership in the Company such that the Grantee may benefit from increases in the value of the Company's
stock, thereby aligning the Grantee's interests with those of the Company's stockholders generally.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows:
1. Grant of Restricted Stock. Subject to the restrictions, terms and conditions set forth herein and in the Company's 2011 Omnibus Equity Incentive
Plan (the "Plan"), the Company hereby grants to the Grantee
(
) shares of the Company's common stock, par value per share $0.01
(the "Restricted Stock"). The provisions of the Plan are incorporated herein by reference, and all capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the
same meaning as set forth in the Plan. In the event of any inconsistency between the provisions of the Plan and this Agreement, the provisions of this
Agreement shall govern and control.
2.

Restrictions and Vesting.

(a) General. Except as provided in this Agreement, shares of Restricted Stock are not transferable and are subject to a substantial risk of
forfeiture until vested as set forth in Section 2(b). The Grantee's interest in the Restricted Stock shall become transferable and nonforfeitable as of the
vesting date provided in Section 2(b) ("Vesting Date"), provided the Grantee is a member of the Board of Directors of the Company on the Vesting Date
and has been a member of the Board of Directors throughout the period beginning on the date of this Agreement and ending on the Vesting Date.
(b) Vesting Schedule. The Restricted Stock shall vest, become transferable and no longer be subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture on the
earlier to occur of (i) the day preceding the next annual meeting of stockholders of the Company or (ii) the first anniversary of the date of this
Agreement.
(c)

Forfeiture Provisions.

The following forfeiture provisions shall apply to the Restricted Stock:

(i) If Grantee's service as a member of the Board of Directors of the Company is terminated for any reason, with or without cause, including
the voluntary resignation of Grantee (in any case, other than as set forth in Section 2(c)(ii) below), then Grantee shall forfeit to the Company all
unvested Restricted Stock and all rights arising from such unvested shares and from being a holder. Such unvested Restricted Stock shall
automatically be cancelled as issued under the Plan by the Company with no further action or notice required on the part of the Company or
Grantee.
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(ii) If Grantee's service as a member of the Board of Directors of the Company is terminated (i) upon the death of Grantee or (ii) because
Grantee is determined by a majority of the other members Board of Directors of the Company or the Administrator (as defined below) of the Plan
to be subject to a Disability, then all of Grantee's unvested shares shall automatically become vested shares as of the date of such termination and
thereafter no longer be subject to the restrictions set forth in this Agreement.
3. Issuance of Restricted Stock. Restricted Stock may be issued, at the Company's option, as follows: (i) certificates evidencing the Restricted Stock
may be issued by the Company and, if so, shall be registered in the Grantee's name on the stock transfer books of the Company promptly after the date hereof,
but shall remain in the physical custody of the Company or its designee at all times prior to the vesting of such Restricted Stock pursuant to Section 2(b); or
(ii) may be registered in book entry form on the stock transfer books of the Company without issuance of physical certificates.
4. Rights as a Stockholder. The Grantee shall be the record owner of the shares of Restricted Stock until or unless such Restricted Stock is forfeited
pursuant to Section 2 hereof, and as record owner shall generally be entitled to all rights of a stockholder with respect to the Restricted Stock (other than the
right to transfer or dispose of such shares), including the right to vote and receive dividends (cash or otherwise); provided, however, that the Company will
retain custody of all dividends and distributions, if any ("Retained Distributions"), made or declared on the Restricted Stock (and such Retained Distributions
shall be subject to forfeiture and the same restrictions, terms, vesting and other conditions as are applicable to the Restricted Stock) until such time, if ever, as
the Restricted Stock with respect to which such Retained Distributions shall have been made, paid or declared shall have become vested, and such Retained
Distributions shall not bear interest or be segregated in a separate account. As soon as practicable following the Vesting Date, the restricted designation on the
book entry form on the stock transfer books of the Company will be removed, and any applicable Retained Distributions, shall be delivered to the Grantee or
to the Grantee's legal guardian or representative.
5. Legend on Certificates. The certificates representing the vested Restricted Stock delivered in the name of the Grantee as contemplated by Section 4
above shall be subject to such stop transfer orders and other restrictions as the Company may deem advisable under the rules, regulations and other
requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission, any stock exchange upon which such shares are listed, and any applicable federal or state laws, and
the Company may cause a legend or legends to be put on any such certificates to make appropriate reference to such restrictions as the Company deems
appropriate.
6. No Right to Continued Service as a Board Member.
Board of Directors of the Company.

This Agreement does not confer upon the Grantee any right to continuance as a member of the

7. Delivery of Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc. Prospectus dated December 30, 2011. Grantee acknowledges that Grantee has been provided a copy
of the Company's prospectus related to the Plan.
8.
Plan.

Terms of Issuance.

Grantee acknowledges that the Restricted Stock is being issued pursuant to and is subject at all times to the provisions of the

9. Transferability. The Restricted Stock may not, at any time prior to becoming vested pursuant to Section 2(b), be assigned, alienated, pledged,
attached, sold or otherwise transferred or encumbered by the Grantee and any such purported assignment, alienation, pledge, attachment, sale, transfer or
encumbrance shall be void and unenforceable.
10. Notice. Every notice or other communication relating to this Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be mailed to or delivered to the party for
whom it is intended at such address as may from time to time be designated in a notice mailed or delivered to the other party as provided herein; provided
that, unless and until some other address be so designated, all notices or communications by
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the Grantee to the Company shall be mailed or delivered to the Company at its Tulsa, Oklahoma, office and all notices or communications by the Company to
the Grantee may be given to the Grantee personally or mailed to the Grantee's home address as reflected on the books of the Company.
11. Administration. This Agreement and the issuance of shares contemplated hereunder shall be administered by the Board or a committee of one or
more members of the Board appointed by the Board to administer this Agreement and such issuance (the "Administrator"). Subject to applicable law, the
Administrator shall have the sole and plenary authority to: (i) interpret, administer, reconcile any inconsistency in, correct any defect in and/or supply any
omission in this Agreement; (ii) establish, amend, suspend, or waive any rules and regulations and appoint such agents as the Administrator shall deem
appropriate for the proper administration of this Agreement; (iii) accelerate the lapse of restrictions on shares; and (iv) make any other determination and take
any other action that the Administrator deems necessary or desirable for the administration of this Agreement. The Administrator may delegate to one or more
officers of the Company the authority to act on behalf of the Administrator with respect to any matter, right, obligation, or election that is the responsibility of
or that is allocated to the Administrator herein, and that may be so delegated as a matter of law.
12. Governing Law. THIS AGREEMENT IS GOVERNED BY AND SHALL BE CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE
STATE OF DELAWARE, WITHOUT REGARD TO THE CONFLICTS OF LAW PRINCIPLES OF SUCH STATE. EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO
HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM ARISING OUT OF
OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT.
13. Special Tax Election.
(a) Section 83(b). Under Section 83 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), the excess of the fair market value of the
Restricted Stock on the date any forfeiture restrictions applicable to such shares lapse over the purchase price paid for those shares will be reportable as
ordinary income on the lapse date. For this purpose, the term "forfeiture restrictions" includes vesting provisions applicable to the Restricted Stock as
provided in Section 2 hereof. The Grantee may elect under Section 83(b) of the Code to be taxed at the time the Restricted Stock is acquired, rather than
when and as such Restricted Stock ceases to be subject to such forfeiture restrictions. Such election must be filed with the Internal Revenue Service
within thirty (30) days after the date of this Agreement (which is also the grant date of the Restricted Stock).
(b) Grantee Responsibility. A brief explanation of the election and the form for making this election are attached as Exhibit A hereto. The
Grantee acknowledges that it is the Grantee's sole responsibility, and not the Company's, to file a timely election under Section 83(b) of the
Code. The Grantee is advised to consult with his or her personal tax advisors in filing such an election.
14. Withholding. In the event that the Company determines that tax withholding is required with respect to the Grantee, the Grantee shall be required
to pay to the Company, and the Company shall have the right to deduct from any compensation paid to the Grantee pursuant to the Plan, the amount of any
required withholding taxes in respect of the Restricted Stock and to take such other action as the Administrator deems necessary to satisfy all obligations for
the payment of such withholding and taxes. The Administrator may permit the Grantee to satisfy the withholding liability: (a) in cash, (b) by having the
Company withhold from the number of shares of Common Stock otherwise issuable or deliverable pursuant to the settlement of the Restricted Stock a number
of shares with a Fair Market Value equal to the minimum withholding obligation, (c) by delivering shares of Common Stock owned by the Grantee unless
such delivery would result in adverse accounting consequences for the Company, or (d) by a combination of any such methods. For purposes hereof, shares
Common Stock shall be valued at Fair Market Value.
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15. Miscellaneous.
(a) Amendment and Waiver. The provisions of this Agreement may be amended, modified or waived only with the prior written consent of the
Company and Grantee, and no course of conduct or failure or delay in enforcing the provisions of this Agreement shall be construed as a waiver of such
provisions or affect the validity, binding effect or enforceability of this Agreement or any provision hereof.
(b) Severability. Any provision in this Agreement which is prohibited or unenforceable in any jurisdiction by reason of applicable law shall, as
to such jurisdiction, be ineffective only to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating or affecting the remaining provisions
hereof, and any such prohibition or unenforceability in any jurisdiction shall not invalidate or render unenforceable such provision in any other
jurisdiction.
(c) Entire Agreement and Effectiveness. This Agreement embodies the complete agreement and understanding among the parties hereto with
respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede and preempt any prior understandings, agreements or representations by or among the parties, written
or oral, which may have related to the subject matter hereof in any way.
(d) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of
which together shall constitute one and the same Agreement.
(e)

Headings.

The paragraph headings have been inserted for purposes of convenience and shall not be used for interpretive purposes.

(f) Gender and Plurals. Whenever the context may require, any pronouns used herein shall include the corresponding masculine, feminine or
neuter forms, and the singular form of nouns and pronouns shall include the plural and vice versa.
(g) Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by and against Grantee, the Company and
their respective successors, assigns, heirs, representatives and estates, as the case may be.
(h) Construction. Where specific language is used to clarify by example a general statement contained herein, such specific language shall not
be deemed to modify, limit or restrict in any manner the construction of the general statement to which it relates. The language used in this Agreement
shall be deemed to be the language chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of strict construction shall be applied against any
party.
(i) Survival of Representations, Warranties and Agreements. All representations, warranties and agreements contained herein shall survive the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and the termination of this Agreement.
(j) WAIVER OF PUNITIVE AND EXEMPLARY DAMAGE CLAIMS. EACH PARTY, BY EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT, WAIVES, TO
THE FULLEST EXTENT ALLOWED BY LAW, ANY CLAIMS TO RECOVER PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY OR SIMILAR DAMAGES NOT
MEASURED BY THE PREVAILING PARTY'S ACTUAL DAMAGES IN ANY DISPUTE OR CONTROVERSY ARISING UNDER, RELATING
TO OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT.
(k) Spouses. If the spouse of Grantee fails to execute the spousal consent set forth on the signature page attached hereto (the "Consent"), until
such time as the Consent is duly executed, Grantee's economic rights associated with his or her Shares will be suspended and not subject to recovery. If
a spouse or former spouse of Grantee acquires any of the unvested Restricted Stock issued pursuant hereto as a result of any property settlement or
separation agreement, such spouse
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or former spouse hereby grants an irrevocable power of attorney (which will be coupled with an interest) to Grantee to give or withhold such approval
as he or she will himself or herself approve with respect to such matter and without the necessity of the taking of any action by any such spouse or
former spouse. Such power of attorney will not be affected by the subsequent disability or incapacity of the spouse or former spouse granting such
power of attorney.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day and year first above written.

COMPANY:
LAREDO PETROLEUM HOLDINGS, INC.
By:
Name: Randy A. Foutch
Title: Chairman & CEO
GRANTEE:

[insert typed name]
SPOUSAL CONSENT
Grantee's spouse, if any, is fully aware of, understands and fully consents and agrees to the provisions of this Agreement and their binding effect upon
any marital or community property interests he or she may now or hereafter own, and agrees that the termination of his or her and Grantee's marital
relationship for any reason shall not have the effect of removing any restricted shares subject to this Agreement from coverage hereunder and that his or her
awareness, understanding, consent and agreement are evidenced by his or her signature below.

Spouse's Name:
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EXHIBIT A
EXPLANATION OF A SECTION 83(b) TAX ELECTION
In general, Section 83 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), provides that a Grantee of shares subject to any forfeiture
restrictions will recognize income equal to the excess of the fair market value of the shares on the date any forfeiture restrictions applicable to such shares
lapse over the amount paid for such shares. For this purpose, the term "forfeiture restrictions" includes the restrictions placed upon the Restricted Stock
pursuant to Section 2 of the Restricted Stock Agreement to which this explanation is attached as Exhibit A.
The Grantee, however, may elect under Section 83(b) of the Code to be taxed at the time the Restricted Stock is acquired, rather than on each date the
Restricted Stock ceases to be subject to forfeiture restrictions. The election must be filed with the Internal Revenue Service within thirty (30) days after
the date of grant (the date of grant being May 16, 2012).
If you prefer to file the election, you should mail one copy of the signed Section 83(b) Election to the Internal Revenue Service (see attached chart for
appropriate Internal Revenue Service Center), by certified mail (return receipt requested), using the attached letter to the Internal Revenue Service, which you
must date and sign (also fill in your social security number). You should also retain a copy of the election and attach it to your tax return for the applicable tax
year.
If you file the election, you must also file a copy with the Company. You can do this by notifying
provide her a scanned copy of your signed election by email, for our internal records.

by email, and

IT IS THE GRANTEE'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR MAKING A TIMELY FILING WITH THE IRS.
Failure to make this filing within the applicable thirty day period will result in the recognition of ordinary income by the Grantee as the forfeiture
restrictions lapse.
By making the election, the Grantee is electing to treat the value of the grant as ordinary income in the year of grant, based on the grant date value, even
though the value of the stock may be less at the time the restrictions lapse, or a substantial risk of forfeiture exists, and in either of such events, the Grantee
will not be entitled to a refund of any income taxes paid in the year of grant.
THE DISCUSSION ABOVE IS INTENDED ONLY AS A SUMMARY AND DOES NOT PURPORT TO BE A COMPLETE DISCUSSION OF
ALL POTENTIAL TAX EFFECTS RELEVANT TO GRANTEES UNDER THE PLAN. SUCH DISCUSSION IS BASED UPON CURRENT LAW
AND INTERPRETATIONAL AUTHORITIES WHICH ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE AT ANY TIME.
IT IS STRONGLY URGED THAT GRANTEES CONSULT WITH THEIR OWN TAX ADVISORS CONCERNING THE TAX CONSEQUENCES
OF MAKING A SECTION 83(b) TAX ELECTION WITH RESPECT TO THEIR PERSONAL TAX CIRCUMSTANCES.
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ELECTION TO INCLUDE VALUE OF RESTRICTED PROPERTY IN
GROSS INCOME IN YEAR OF TRANSFER UNDER CODE §83(b)
The undersigned hereby elects pursuant to §83(b) of the Internal Revenue Code with respect to the property described below and supplies the following
information in accordance with the regulations promulgated thereunder:
1.

The name, address and taxpayer identification number of the undersigned are:

Name:
Address:
SS#:
2.

Description of property with respect to which the election is being made:

The undersigned has received

shares of Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share, of Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc. (the "Company").

3.

The date on which property was transferred is May 16, 2012.

4.

The taxable year to which this election relates is calendar year 2012.

5. The nature of the restriction(s) to which the property is subject is: The property is subject to vesting requirements based upon the taxpayer's
continuation to serve as a member of the Board of Directors of Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc. (or another affiliate of the Company) and other restrictions as
set forth in the Restricted Stock Agreement between the Company and the undersigned.
6. Fair market value: The aggregate fair market value at time of transfer (determined without regard to any restrictions other than restrictions which
by their terms will never lapse) of the property with respect to which this election is being made is $
.
7.

Amount paid for property:

The amount paid by taxpayer for the property is $0.

8.

Furnishing statement to employer:

A copy of this statement has been furnished to the Company.

Dated:

Taxpayer's Signature
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[

], 2012

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service Center
[Insert Service Center Address]
Re:

Section 83(b) Election

SSN:
Dear Sir or Madam:
Pursuant to U.S. Treasury Regulation Section 1.83-2(c) promulgated under Section 83 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
"Code"), enclosed please find an election under Section 83(b) of the Code.

Sincerely,

[Name]
Enclosure
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IRS Service Center Addresses

IF you live in...

Florida* or Georgia*

Alabama, Kentucky, Louisiana,
Mississippi, Tennessee, Texas

THEN use this address if you:
Are not enclosing a check or money
Are enclosing a check or money
order...
order...

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service
Atlanta, GA 39901-0002
Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service
Austin, TX 73301-0002
Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service
Fresno, CA 93888-0002

Internal Revenue Service
P.O. Box 105017
Atlanta, GA 30348-5017
Internal Revenue Service
P.O. Box 1214
Charlotte, NC 28201-1214
Internal Revenue Service
P.O. Box 7704
San Francisco, CA 94120-7704

Alaska, Arizona, California,
Colorado, Hawaii, Idaho,
Nevada, New Mexico, Oregon,
Utah, Washington, Wyoming
Arkansas, Illinois, Indiana, Iowa,
Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service
Kansas, Michigan, Minnesota,
Internal Revenue Service
P.O. Box 802501
Montana, Nebraska, North
Fresno, CA 93888-0002
Cincinnati, OH 45280-2501
Dakota, Oklahoma, South
Dakota, Wisconsin
Delaware, District of Columbia,
Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service
Maryland, Missouri, Ohio,
Internal Revenue Service
P.O. Box 970011
Rhode Island, Virginia, West
Kansas City, MO 64999-0002
St. Louis, MO 63197-0011
Virginia
Connecticut, Maine, Massachusetts,
Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service
New Hampshire, New Jersey,
Internal Revenue Service
P.O. Box 37008
New York, North Carolina**,
Kansas
City,
MO
64999-0002
Hartford, CT 06176-0008
Pennsylvania, South Carolina**,
Vermont
A foreign country, U.S. possession
Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service
or territory***, or use an APO
Internal Revenue Service
P.O. Box 1303
or FPO address, or file
Austin,
TX
73301-0215
USA
Charlotte, NC 28201-1303 USA
Form 2555, 2555-EZ, or 4563, or
are a dual-status alien
*
If you live in Florida or Georgia, are not enclosing a check or money order, and are filing after June 30, 2011, use: Department of the Treasury,
Internal Revenue Service, Kansas City, MO 64999-0002.
**

If you live in North Carolina or South Carolina, are enclosing a check or money order, and are filing after June 30, 2011, use: Internal Revenue
Service, P.O. Box 105017, Atlanta, GA 30348-5017.

***

If you live in American Samoa, Puerto Rico, Guam, the U.S. Virgin Islands, or the Northern Mariana Islands, see Pub. 570.
YOU ARE ADVISED TO CONSULT WITH YOUR PERSONAL TAX ADVISOR BEFORE MAKING AN ELECTION UNDER
SECTION 83(b) OF THE CODE. IN ADDITION, PLEASE NOTE THAT IRS SERVICE CENTER ADDRESSES ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE
FOR THE 2012 TAX YEAR.
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Randy A. Foutch, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b.

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c.

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b.

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: August 9, 2012

/s/ RANDY A. FOUTCH
Randy A. Foutch
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, W. Mark Womble, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b.

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c.

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b.

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: August 9, 2012

/s/ W. MARK WOMBLE
W. Mark Womble
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, Randy A. Foutch, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of Laredo Petroleum Holdings, Inc. (the "Company"), and W. Mark Womble, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify that, to their knowledge:
(1)

the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the period ending June 30, 2012, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on the date hereof (the "Report"), fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2)

the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company.

August 9, 2012

/s/ RANDY A. FOUTCH
Randy A. Foutch
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
August 9, 2012

/s/ W. MARK WOMBLE
W. Mark Womble
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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